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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 12. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to amend an existing
contract with Greater Seacoast Community Health (VC# 166629-B001), Somersworth. NH, for
Family Support Coordinator services, by exercising a contract renewal option, by increasing the
price limitation by $110,000 from $225,000 to $335,000 and extending the completion date from
June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, effective July 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Other Funds (Governor's Commission Funds).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22, 2021, item
#23, as amended with Governor and Council approval on May 18, 2022, item #23.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2024,
with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058501 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2022 102-600731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058501 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058501 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058501 $0 $110,000 $110,000

Total $225,000 $110,000 $335,000
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue providing family support group
coordination services for families of individuals with Substance Use Disorders (SUD) and/or co-
occurring mental health disorders. In addition, the Contractor will increase staffing through
additional funding in this request.

The Contractor will continue to coordinate family support group facilitator trainings,
statewide, and assess the family support group network to identify areas vrfiere new or additional
family support groups are needed by identifying locations of current groups by Regional Public
Health Network (RPHN). region. In addition, the Contractor will recruit for a Family Support
Services Facilitator:

Approximately 1600 individuals will be senred from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024.

The Contractor will continue to provide training and support for family support services
group facilitators to organize and facilitate groups for individuals with loved ones who struggle
with substance misuse. Services include substance misuse education, access to resources to
assist with substance misuse and related needs, and peer-to-peer support and mentoring. These
services help participants to increase their knowledge of substance misuse, individual and family
resiliency, skills for supporting loved ones with a substance use disorder, and the ability to
contribute to their families and communities as a.whole.

The Department will continue to monitor Contractor performance to ensure increased
access to family support groups as measured by the number of support groups and number of
NH residents served.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, of the attached
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services available funding, agreement of the parties, and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its renewal option to renew for one
(1) year of the remaining three (3) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the availability of family
support services groups will decrease, potentially resulting in lower individual resiliency and
community contribution. In addition, the ability to help individuals who misuse substances to
access necessary services will decrease. Substance misuse may consequently continue for
longer than it otherwise would have, increasing the social, emotional, physical, and financial
impacts of stress and trauma for both the individuals who are misusing substances and their loved
ones.

Area served: Statewide.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Departrnent of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Family Support Coordinator Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Greater Seacoast
Community Health ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on January 22,2021 (Item #23), as amended on May 18, 2022 (Item #23), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Subsection 1.1, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS,'the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$335,000

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore. Director

4. Modify Exhibit C - Payment Terms, Section 2, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulflllrrient of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2, Budget.

5. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

. a
Greater Seacoast Community Health A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2021-BDAS-08-FAMIL-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date^^^^^^^il



OocuSign Envelope ID: 364561EC-5EBE-4AFO-8024-2D7701A73E5D

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/19/2023

Date

-DocuSigncd by;

Name:Katja s. fox

Title: Director

Greater Seacoast Community Health

4/13/2023

Date

DoeuSignid by:

JaW iMh(k
■4aTPiT8PPieTiieo..

Name:3anet Laatsch
Title:

Greater Seacoast Community Health

RFP-2021-BDAS-08-FAMIL-01-A02

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.'

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-DocuSto"*^

5/2/2023
748734844941400...

Dili Name:'^°''>'" '
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Greater Seacoast Cornmunity Health A-S-1.2

RFP-2021-BDAS-08-FAMIL-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
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Extitbit C^, Amendment #2. Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BIddedPrognm Nime: Greiter Seacoisi Community Health

Budget Request tor RFP-2021-8DAS^)S-FAMIt.-01-A02 • Fimlly Support Group Coordinator Services
(NcfMcrftfP)

Budget Period; 7/1/23 • 6/30/24

- Total Program Cost Contractor Share / Match Furtded by DHHS contract share

I.lne Item Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total Direct -  Indirect Total

1, Total Salarv/Waoes 3  61.568.00 3 6.156.80 3 67,724,60 3  61.566.00 3 .6.156.80 3 67.724.80

2. Emolovee Benefits $  12.929.28 3 1.292.93 3 14,222.21 3  12.929.26 3 1.292.93 3 14,222.21

3. Consultants S  800.00 3 800.00 3  800.00 3 800.00

4. Equlpmertt 3 3 - 3 - 3 3 - 3 •

Rental 3  500.00 3 50.00 3 550.00 3  500.00 3 50.00 3 550.00

Repair and Maintenance 3  25.00 3 2.50 3 27,50 3  25.00 3 2.50 3 27.50

Purchase/Deoradatlon 3 3 . 3 . 3 3 . 3 -

5. Supplies; 3 3 . 3 . 3 3 - 3 -

Educational 3  600.00 3 60.00 3 660.00 3  600.00 3 60.00 3 660.00

Lab 3 3 - 3 - 3 3 3 .

Pharmacv 3 3 3 3 3 3

Medical 3 3 • 3 . 3 3 • 3 -

Otnce 3  1.000.00 3 100.00 3 1.100.00 3  1.000.00 3 100.00 3 1.100.00

6. Travel 3  1,800.00 3 160.00 3 1.980.00 3  1.800.00 3 180.00 3 1.980.00

7. Occupartcy 3  3.600.00 3 360.00 3 3.960.00 3  3.600.00 3 360.00 3 3.960.00

9. Current Expenses 3 3 . 3 • 3 3 - 3 -

Telephorw 3  900.00 3 90.00 3 990.00 3  900.00 3 90.00 3 990.00

Postaoe 3 3 . 3 . s 3 . 3 -

Sut>scriDliorts 3 3 3 3 3 3

Audit and Leoal 3 3 3 3 3 3

InsuraiKe 3 3 3 3 3 3

Board Expenses 3 3 3 3 3 3

9. Software 3 3 • 3 • 3 3 . 3 •

10. MarketinQ/Conynunicatiorts 3  1.000.00 3 100.00 3 1,100.00 3  1.000.00 3 100.00 3 1.100.00

11. Stan Education and Training 3  3.441.36 3 344.14 3 3,785.50 3  3,441.36 3 344.14 3 3.785.50

12. Subcontraos/Agraements 3  12.000.00 3 12.000.00 3  12.000.00 3 12.000.00

13. Other iMeetino Expenses): 3  1.000,00 3 100.00 3 1,100.00 3  1,000.00 3 100.00 3 1.100.00

3 3 - 3 - 3 3 3 3 3 - 3 -

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

3 3 - 3 - 3 3 3 3 3 - 3 •

TOTAL 3  101,163.64 3 • 8,836.36 3 110,000.00 3 3 3 3  ' 101,163.64 3 8,836.36 3 110,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 8.7H

Greater Seacoasi Community Health
RFP.2021-BOAS4»fAMlL-01-A02

E^bil C-4. AmerKlment «2. Budget
Page 10(1

Contractor Initials
A
4/13/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GR-EATER SEACOAST

COMMUNITY HEALTH is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

August 18, 1971. 1 further certiiy that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is

in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65587

Certificate Number: 0005877394

'A

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 30th day of September A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar>' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Jennifer Glidden, Chair, of Greater Seacoast Community Health hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Greater Seacoast Community Health.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders,

duly called and held on January 23, 2023 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were
present and voting.

VOTED: the Janet Laatsch

Is duly authorized on behalf of Greater Seacoast Community Health to enter into contracts or

agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is

authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and amendments,

revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgement be desirable or necessary to

effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repeated and remain In full force and effect

as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. The

authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further

certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence

that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full

authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any

listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

3/22/2023

-OocuSlgntd by:

C3SBC10ie80&4CE...

Jennifer Glidden

Chair
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/XcfoRD*
GOODCOM-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

PCANTLIN

DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

3/22/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER -THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor$ement(s).

PRODUCER License # AGR8150
Clark Insurance

One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

CONTACT
NAMF-

wc.^N^. Exil: (603) 622-2855 no):(603) 622-2854
info@clarkinsurance.com

INSIIRF.RIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICi

INSURER A: Selective Insurance Co of South Carolina 19259

INSURED Greater Seacoast Community Health, Inc.
dba Goodwin Community Health, Families First
SOS Community Organization, Lilac City Pediatrics
311 Route 108

Somersworth, NH 03878

INSURER B:Technoloav Insurance Comoanv 42376

insurerc:AIX Soecialtv Insurance Co 12833

INSURER D :

INSURER E; -

INSURER P:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT \A1TH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

XIB.
TYPE OP INSURANCE

ADOL
INSD

SUBR,
WVD POUCY NUMBER

POUCY EPF
<MM/DD/YYYY1

POUCY EXP

IMMfPPfYYYYI

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS4AADE | X | OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

S 2439491 12/1/2022 12/1/2023
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea oecufrencal

MED EXP (Any ofia pertoni

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

OTHER:

1,000,000

500,000

10,000

Included

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa BccKienH

1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

S 2439491 "12/1/2022 12/1/2023 BODILY INJURY (Per parson)

SONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS BODILY INJURY {Per accktenO

PROPERTY p,
(P«f BCCKtent)

>AMAGE

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
5,000.000

S 2439491 12/1/2022 12/1/2023
AGGREGATE

5,000,000

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
ANOEMPLOYERS* UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETORff>ARTNeR/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
^andaioiY in NK)
If yes. detcriM under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bekw

I f IV

□
TWC4193554 1/1/2023 1/1/2024

y PER
^ STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
1,000,000

Medical Professional

Medical Professional

L3V.A$71986-08

L3V-A671986-08

1/1/2023

1/1/2023

1/1/2024

1/1/2024

Each Incident

Aggregate
1,000,000
3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUonil Ramtrirs Sehadule. may bt eRsched If more apace is required)
Professional Liability excludes coverage for claims that are covered under the FTCA

State of NH
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

i

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLiCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE eXPJRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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G o,6dwi h Fa hfi i t ies Lilac City
Community .Health. -First Pediatrics

Our mission

To deliver innovative, compassionate, integrated health services and support that are

accessible to all in our community, regardless of ability to pay.

Families First Health & Support Center | 100 Campus Drive Suite 12 Portsmouth NH 03801 | 603.422.8208 | FamiliesFirstSeacoast.org

Goodwin Community Health | 311 Route 108 Somersworth NH 03878 | 603.749.2346 | GoodwinCH.org

Lilac City Pediatrics | 180 Farmington Road Rochester NH 03867 | 603.335.4522 | LilacCity.com
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BerryDunn

Z

.:iGREATER SEACOASTCOMMUNrh'HEALTH

,Gp6dw|a .families UlacjGity
'^Fjrst; ^PeidibtfiiK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING

STANDARDS AND THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

December 31, 2021 and 2020

With Independent Auditor's Report
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l^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Greater Seacoast Community Health

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Seacoast Community Health (the
Organization), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

Maine • New Hampshire • Mossachusetts ■ Connecticut ■ West Virginia ■ Arizono

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

Greater Seacoast Community Health
Page 2

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control. Misstatements are considered material If there is
a substantial likelihood that, Individually or In the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based, on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.
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Board of Directors

Greater Seacoast Community Health
Page 3

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such Information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial,
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 23,
2022 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization's Internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Portland, Maine
May 23, 2022
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,428,603 $ 8,238,071
Patient accounts receivable 946,289 898,514
Grant and other receivables 826,005 1,149,771
Pledges receivable 379,166 289,104
Inventory 84,243 134,597
Other current assets 80.195 156.514

Total current assets 11,744,501 10,866,571

Investments 2,248,099 1,997,275

Pledges receivable, less of current pledges • 135,333
Assets limited as to use 1,513,872 1,361,054
Property and equipment, net 6.763.858 5.938.040

Total assets $ 22.270.330 $20,298,273

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  499,922 $  283,102

Accrued payroll and related expenses 1,123,883 955,457

Patient deposits 171,291 152,926

Deferred revenue 219,339 116,450
Provider Relief Funds refundable advance - 221,102

Paycheck Protection Program refundable advance - 1,479,000

Current maturities of long-term debt 27.925 27.304

Total current liabilities 2,042,360 3,235,341

Long-term debt, less current maturities 233.911 261.836

Total liabilities 2.276.271 3.497.177

Net assets

Without donor restrictions 16,051,868 13,990,441

With donor restrictions 3.942.191 2.810.655

Total net assets 19.994.059 16.801.096

Total liabilities and net assets $22,270,330 $20,298,273

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 364561EC-5EBE-4AF0-8024-2D7701A73E5D

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Operating revenue and support
Net patient service revenue
Grants, contracts, and contributions
Provider Relief Fund

$li2,147,244 $11,793,485
9,502,562 9,317,881
221,102

Paycheck Protection Program
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for operations

1,479,000
476,334
193.959

448,537
171.899

Total operating revenue and support 24.020.201 21.731.802

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Contracted services

Program supplies
Information technology
Occupancy
Other

Depreciation
Interest expense

13,671,440
2,524,515

1,075,563
1,980,697
641,007

820,794
1,326,186
307,683

6.225

12,571,717

2,255,496
985,228

1,519,931
755,828
786,296

1,276,901
286,651

3.111

Total operating expenses 22.354.110 20.441.159

Operating income 1.666.091 1.290.643

Other revenue

. Investment income

Change in fair value of investments
92,870

134.629

50,806
166.963

Total other revenue 227.499 217.769

Excess of revenue over expenses 1,893,590 1,508,412

Grants received for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

167,837 69,701
32.969

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions $ 2.061.427 $ 1.611.082

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSiQD Envelope ID: 364561EC-5EBE-4AFO-8024-2D7701A73E5D

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Net assets without donor restrictions
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 1,893,590 $ 1,508,412
Grants received for capital acquisition 167,837 69,701
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition : 32.969

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 2.061.427 1.611.082

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions 1,127,393 1,098,894
Investment income 44,850 28,158
Change in fair value of investments 153,252 129,596
Net assets released from restriction for operations (193,959) (171,899)
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition : (32.969)

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 1.131.536 1.051.780

Change in net assets 3,192,963 2,662,862

Net assets, beginning of year 16.801.096 14.138.234

Net assets, end of year $19,994,059 $16.801.096

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-6-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 364561EC-5EBE-4AF0-8024-2D7701A73E5D

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2Q21

Cash flows from operating activities
Change In net assets $ 3,192,963 $ 2,662,862

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities

Depreciation 307,683 286,651

Change in fair value .of investments (287,881) (296,559)
Grants and contributions for long-term purposes (1,859,630) (1,144,139)

Decrease (Increase) in
Patient accounts receivable (47,775) 196,741

Grant and other receivables " 323,766 (386,288)

Pledges receivable 700 29,425

Inventory 50,354 (34,169)
Other current assets 76,319 (103,372)

Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 216,820 82,653

Accrued payroll and related expenses 168,426 (244,255)
Patient deposits 18,365 15,687

Deferred revenue 102,889 69,822

Provider Relief Funds refundable advance (221,102) 221,102

Paycheck Protection Program refundable advance (1.479.000) 1.479.000

Net cash provided by operating activities 562.897 2.835.161

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital acquisitions (1,133,501) (440,161)

Proceeds from sale of investments 78,398 683,784

Purchase of investments (194.1591 (749.7041

Net cash used by investing activities (1.249.2621 (506.0811

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants and contributions for long-term purposes 1,904,201 723,902

Proceeds from long-term debt 300,000

Payments on long-term debt (27.3041 (10.8601

Net cash provided by financing activities 1.876.897 1.013.042

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,190,532 3,342,122

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 8.238.071 4.895.949

-Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 9.428.603 $ 8.238.071

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest $ 6,225 $ 3,111

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 364561EC-5EBE-4AF0-8024-2D7701A73E5D

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Organization

Greater Seacoast Community Health (the Organization) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in New
Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC), providing fully integrated
medical, behavioral, oral health, recovery services and social support for underserved populations. The
Organization is a network of community health centers, which includes Families First Health & Support
Center, Goodwin Community Health, and Lilac City Pediatrics, providing healthcare services to
individuals living within the greater seacoast area.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which requires the Organization to report
information in the financial statements according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC).
As a public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income
earned in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state
and federal income tax. -Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and
concluded that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that
require adjustment to the financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 364561EC-5EBE-4AF0-8024-2D7701A73E5D

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared coronavirus disease (COVID-19) a global
pandemic and the United States federal government declared COVID-19 a national emergency.
The Organization implemented an emergency response to ensure the safety of its patients, staff
and the community. In adhering to guidelines issued by the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, the Organization took steps to create safe distances between both staff and
patients. All providers received the necessary equipment to allow for medical and behavioral health
visits using telehealth. Dental operations were curtailed for a period of time in 2020 and resumed
operations at reduced levels which subsequently returned to more normal operations during 2021.

The Organization received distributions totaling $221,102 from the Provider Relief Fund (PRF), a
fund established to support healthcare providers in responding to the COVID-19 outbreak, in 2020.
The PRF is being administered by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) and
is to be used for qualifying expenses and to cover lost revenue due to COVID-19 through June 30,
2021. The PRF is considered a conditional contribution and is recognized as income when
qualifying expenditures or lost revenues have been incurred. Unexpended funds are reported as
refundable advances on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2020. The Organization identified
qualifying expenditures $221,102 during the year ended December 31, 2021.

The Organization qualified for and received a loan in the amount of $1,479,000 from the Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP), a program implemented by the U.S. Small Business Administration
(SBA). The principal amount of the PPP was subject to forgiveness, upon the Organization's
request, to the extent that the proceeds are used to pay qualifying expenditures, iricluding payroll
costs, rent and utilities, incurred by the Organization during a specific covered period. The PPP is
considered a conditional contribution and is recognized as income when qualifying expenditures
have been incurred and management has determined the conditions of forgiveness have
substantially been met. The PPP was fully forgiven by the SBA and the lender on September 17,
2021.

The various COVID-19 programs are complex and subject to interpretation. The programs may be
subject to future investigation by governmental agencies. Any difference between amounts
previously recognized and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and petty cash funds.

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions which exceed federal depository
insurance limits. The Organization has not experienced losses in such accounts and management
believes the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 364561EC-5EBE-4AFO-8024-2D7701A73E5D

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenue Recognition and Patient Accounts Receivable

Net patient service revenue is reported at the amount that'reflects the consideration to which the
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due
from patients and third-party payers (including commercial insurers and governmental programs).
Generally, the Organization bills the patients and third-party payers several days after the services
are performed. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Organization. The Organization measures the performance obligations for medical, dental and
ancillary services from the commencement of an encounter with a patient to the completion of the
encounter. Ancillary sen/ices provided the same day as the encounter are considered to be part of
the performance obligation and are not deemed to be separate performance obligations. Contract
pharmacy services are measured when the prescription is dispensed to the patient as reported by
the pharmacy administrator. The Organization's performance obligations are satisfied at a point in
time.

The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and
services provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payers, discounts
provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Organization's sliding fee discount program,
and implicit price concessions provided to uninsured patients. The Organization determines its
estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts based on contractual agreements, its discount
policies, and historical experience. The Organization determines its estimate of implicit price
concessions based on its historical collection experience.

Consistent with the Organization's mission and FQHC designation, care is provided to patients
regardless of their ability to pay. Therefore, the Organization has determined it has provided
implicit price concessions to uninsured patients and patients with other uninsured balances (for
example, copays and deductibles). The implicit price concessions included in estimating the
transaction price represent the difference between amounts billed to patients and amounts the
Organization expects to collect based on its collection history with those patients.

The Organization has determined that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows are affected by the payer. In assessing collectability. the Organization has elected the
portfolio approach. The portfolio approach is being used as the Organization has a large volume of
similar contracts with similar classes of customers (patients). The Organization reasonably expects
that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of contracts would not differ materially
from considering each contract separately. Management's judgment to group the contracts by
portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each portfolio category. As a result,
aggregating all the contracts (which are at the patient level) by the particular payer or group of
payers will result in the recognition of the same amount of revenue as applying the analysis at the
individual patient level. Payer concentrations are disclosed in Note 9.

The Organization bills the patients and third-party payers several days after the sen/ices are
performed. A summary of payment arrangements follows:
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 364561EC-5EBE-4AFO-8024-2D7701A73E5D

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Medicare

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical, behavioral health and ancillary services
provided to patients based on the lesser of actual charges or prospectively set rates for all FQHC
services furnished to a Medicare beneficiary on the same day when an FQHC furnishes a face-to-
face or virtual visit. Certain other services provided to patients are reimbursed based on
predetermined payment rates for each Current Procedural Terminology (CRT) code, which may be
less than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Medicaid

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical, behavioral health and ancillary services
provided to patients based on prospectively set rates for all FQHC services furnished to a Medicaid
beneficiary on the same day when an FQHC furnishes a face-to-face or virtual visit. Certain other
services, including dental services, provided to patients are reimbursed based on predetermined
payment rates for each CRT code, which may be less than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Other Ravers

The Organization has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. Under these
arrangements, the Organization is reimbursed for services based on contractually obligated
payment rates for each CRT code, which may be less than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Patients

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
program. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing this care by.calculating
the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the gross uncompensated
charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for the sliding fee discount program. The
estimated cost of providing services to patients under the Organization's sliding fee discount
program was approximately $1,066,556 and $1,050,470 for the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively. The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of
funds received through federal and state grants and local support.

For uninsured patients who do not qualify under the Organization's sliding fee discount program,
the Organization bills the patient based on the Organization's standard rates for services provided.
Patient balances are typically due within 30 days of billing; however, the Organization does, in
certain instances, enter into payment agreements with patients that allow payments in excess of
one year. For those cases, the financing component is not deemed to be significant to the contract.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 364561EC-5EBE-4AFO-8024-2D7701A73E5D

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

340B Pharmacy Program Revenue

The Organization, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 3406 Drug Pricing Program. This
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other covered
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local pharmacies under this program.
The contract pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill Medicare
and commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization. The Organization purchases drugs at a
reduced price to replenish the contract pharmacies for the drugs they dispense to the
Organization's patients. The contract pharmacies remit the payments they receive to the
Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. The dispensing and administrative fees are
costs of the program and not deemed to be implicit price concessions which would reduce the
transaction price. The Organization recognizes revenue in the amounts that reflect the
consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the prescription.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. Management believes that the Organization is in compliance with all laws
and regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare. Medicaid and 3408 programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
Included in patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable at January 1, 2020 were $1,095,255.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. The accounts receivable from patients and
third-party payers, net of contractual allowances, were as follows:

2021 2020

Governmental plans
Medicare 8% 7 %

Medicaid 34% 29 %

Commercial payers 36 % 45 %

Patient 22 % 19 %

Total 100 % 100 %
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 364561EC-5EBE-4AF0-8024-2D7701A73E5D

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Grant and Other Receivables, and Deferred Revenue

Grant and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such arriounts are considered collectible.

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from HNS. For the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, grants from HHS (including both direct awards and awards passed

■ through other organizations) represented approximately 67% and 64%, respectively, of the total of
Grants, contracts, and contributions and Provider Relief Fund.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable grants, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allo\wable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has met the
performance requirements or incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant
provisions, as applicable. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported
as deferred revenue.

The Organization has been awarded cost reimbursable grants from HHS that have not been
recognized at December 31, 2021 because qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred as
follows:

Health Center Program
Integrated Behavioral Health Services
Health Center Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic

Security (CARES) Act Funding
FV 2020 Expanding Capacity for Coronavirus Testing
Expanded Medication Assisted Treatment for
Vulnerable Populations

American Rescue Plan Act Funds

Total HHS grant funds available

Amount

$  1,264,569
111,333

44,478

60.863

Available Through

April 30, 2022
April 30. 2022

March 31, 2023
April 30, 2023

146,190 September 30, 2022
2.744.237 March 31. 2023

$  4.371.670

The Organization also was awarded a Health Center Infrastructure Support capital grant in the
amount of $675,263, which is available for use for approved capital projects through September
14, 2024. The Organization intends to use the majority of this grant for the alteration/renovation of
the Organization's Somersworth, New Hampshire facility to accommodate the expansion of primary
care and behavioral health care.

inventorv

Inventory consists primarily of pharmaceuticals and is stated at the lower of cost or retail. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out method.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 364561EC-5EBE-4AFO-8024-2D7701A73E5D

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include investments held for others and donor-restricted contributions to
be held in perpetuity and earnings thereon, subject to the Organization's spending policy as further
discussed in Note 8.

The Organization reports investments at fair value. Investments include donor endowment funds
and assets held for long-term purposes. Accordingly, investments have been classified as non-
current assets in the accompanying balance sheets regardless of maturity or liquidity. The
Organization has established policies goveming long-term investments, which are held within
several investment accounts, based on the purposes for those investment accounts and their
earnings.

The Organization has elected the fair value option for valuing its investments, which consolidates
all investment performance activity within the other revenue and losses section of the statements
of operations. The election was made because the Organization believes reporting the activity in a
single performance indicator provides a clearer measure of the investment performance.
Accordingly, investment income and the change in fair value are included in the excess
(deficiency) of revenue over expenses, unless othenwise stipulated by the donor or State Law.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility risks. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments
will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in
the balance sheets.

Property and Eauipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets. Property and equipment costing less than $5,000 is charged to expense upon
purchase.

Patient Deposits

Patient deposits primarily consist of payments made by patients in advance of significant dental
work based on quotes for the work to be performed.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without
donor restrictions and reported in the statements of operations as net assets released from
restriction.
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

The Organization reports gifts of property and equipment as support without donor restrictions
unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived
assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be
maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or
acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The statements of operations reflect the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in net assets
without donor restrictions which are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses include
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which, by donor
restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets).

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through May 23, 2022, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
Inclusion in the financial statements.

2. Availability and Liouidltv of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash and cash equivalents and investments.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, were as follows at December 31:

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,428,603 $ 8,238,071
investments 2,248,099 1,997,275
Patient accounts receivable 946,289 898,514
Grant and other receivables 826,005 1,149,771
Less donor restricted assets MSI.5181 (448.7111

Financial assets available for current use $12,997,478 $11,834,920

The Organization had average days cash and cash equivalents on hand (based on normal
expenditures) of 156 and 149 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Organization's
goal is generally to have, at the minimum, the Health Resources and Services Administration
(commonly known as HRSA) recommended days cash and cash equivalents on hand for
operations of 30 days.
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

3. Pledges Receivable

Pledges receivable are restricted for capital projects and are due as follows:

Less than one year $
One to five years

Total $.

4. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments, stated at fair value, consisted of the following:

Long-term investments
Assets limited as to use

Total investments

Assets limited as to use are restricted for the following purposes:

Assets held in trust under Section 457(b) deferred
compensation plaris

Assets with donor restrictions

Total

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

2021

379,166 $

2020

289,104
135.333

379.166 $ 424.437

2021 2020

$ 2,248,099- $ 1,997,275
1.513.872 1.361.054

$ 3.761.971 $ 3.358.329

2021 2020

$  57,391 $ 44,809

1.456.481 1.316.245

$ 1.513.872 S 1.361.054

U.S. GAAP defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants and also establishes
a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservabie inputs when measuring fair value.

U.S. GAAP distinguishes three levels of inputs that may be utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's
investments at fair value;

Investments at Fair Value as of December 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents
Municipal bonds
Exchange traded funds
Mutual funds

$  125,737 $

1,359,909
2.118.056

-  $

158,269
$  125,737

158,269
1,359,909
2.118.056

Total investments S 3.603.702 $ 158.269 $ $ 3.761.971

Investments at Fair Value as of December 31. 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents
Municipal bonds
Exchange traded funds
Mutual funds

$  374,694 $

506,873
2.311.637

-  $

165,125
$  374,694

165,125
506,873

2.311.637

Total investments $ 3.193.204 $ 165.125 $ $ 3.358.329

Municipal bonds are valued based on quoted market prices of similar assets.

ProDertv and Eauioment

Properly and equipment consisted of the following:

2021 2020

Land $  718,427 $  718,427
Building and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Construction in progress

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

5,949,854

179,963
2,864,516
1.152.081

10,864,841
4.100.983

5,943,273
327,532

2.734.113

269.161

9,992,506
4.054.466

$ 6.763.858 $ 5.938.040

Construction in progress primarily relates to the Organization's portion of costs associated with the
build of a new facility in Portsrhouth. New Hampshire, which is being constructed by another party
and will be leased to the Organization. The Organization's total share of the project costs was
$1,040,000, plus furniture and equipment and was completed in February 2022.
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Property and equipment acquired with Federal grant funds are subject to specific .federal standards
for sales and other dispositions. In many cases, the Federal government retains a residual
ownership interest in the assets, requiring prior approval and restrictions on disposition.

6. Lona-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31;

2.25% promissory note payable to New Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Authority through July 2030, paid in
monthly installments of $2,794, including interest. Note is
uncollateralized.

. Less.current portion

Long-term debt, less current portion

2021

$  261,836 $
27.925

2020

289,140
27.304

$  233.911 $ 261.836

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are as follows at December 31;

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Total

$  27,925
28,560
29,209
29,873
30,552

115.717

$  261.836

7. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at December 31:

Specific purpose (temporary In nature)
Program services -
Construction of new facility
Pledges receivable for construction of new facility

Passage of time (temporary in nature)
Pledges receivable
Earnings from endowment investments

Held in perpetuity (permanent in nature)
Endowment

Total

2021

451,518 $
1,655,026
375,666

3,500
586,803

869.678

202Q

448,711
621,232
420,267

4,200
446,567

869.678

$  3.942.191 $ 2.810.655
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December 31, 2021 and 2020

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows at December 31:

2021 2020

Satisfaction of purpose - program services $ 39,143 $ 48,514
Satisfaction of purpose - purchase of capital assets - 32,969
Passage of time - pledges receivable 96,950 54,586
Passage of time - endowment earnings 57.866 68.799

Total . $ 193.959. $ " 204.868

8. Endowments

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this interpretation, the Organization classifies as a donor-restricted endowment (a) the original
value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent donor-
restricted endowment gifts, and (c) accumulations to the donor-restricted endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is
added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund, if any, is
classified as net assets with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure
in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;
(2) The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
(3) General economic conditions;
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation;
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) Other resources of the Organization; and
(7) The investment policies of the Organization.

Spending Policy

The Organization has a policy of appropriating for expenditure an amount equal to 5% of the
endowment fund's average fair market value over the prior 20 quarters. The earnings on the
endowment fund are to be used for operations.
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Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the Organization to retain as a fund of
perpetual duration (underwater). In the event the endowment becomes underwater, it is the
Organization's policy to not appropriate expenditures from the endowment assets until the
endowment is no longer underwater. There were no such deficiencies as of December 31, 2021
and 2020.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that
attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while
seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Organization must hold in perpetuity. Under this
policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that
is intended to produce results that exceed or meet designated benchmarks while incurring a
reasonable and prudent level of investment risk.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Organization relies on a total return strategy In
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Organization targets a diversified asset allocation
that places a balanced emphasis on equity-based and income-based investments to achieve its
long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Endowment Net Asset Composition bv Type of Fund

The Organization's endowment consists of assets with donor restrictions only and had the
following related activities at December 31:

2021 202Q

Endowments, beginning of year $ 1,316,245 $ 1,585,562

Investment income 44,850 28,158
Change in fair value of Investments 153,252 129,596
Spending policy appropriations (57,866) (68,799)
Reclassification due to change in purpose restriction : (358.2721

Endowments, end of year $ 1,456^481 $ 1,316,2^

During 2020, the Organization petitioned for and received approval for. a change in the intent of
one of the Organization's endowment donations so the funds can be used to offset costs
associated with the construction of a new facility in Portsmouth, New Hampshire. As a result, the
endowment principal was reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to be held in
perpetuity to net assets with donor restrictions with specific purposes.
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9. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue by payer and program is as follows:

Governmental payers
Medicare

Medicaid

Commercial payers
Patient

Net direct patient service revenue
340B contract pharmacy revenue

Net patient service revenue

Medical,
Behavioral Health

and Dental

Services

762,586
5,226,275
2,842,725
288.321

2021

Pharmacy
Services

277,925
929,547
136.482

9,119,907 1,343,954
1.683.383

Total

$  762,586
5,504,200
3,772,272
424.803

10,463,861
1.683.383

$  9.119.907 $ 3.027.337 $ 12.147.244

2020

Governmental payers
Medicare

Medicaid

Commercial payers
Patient

Net direct patient service revenue
340B contract pharmacy revenue

Net patient service revenue

Medical,
Behavioral Health

and Dental

Services

753,938 $

5,256,020
2.603,757
442.767

9,056,482

Pharmacy
Services

335,695
545,735
182.912

1,064,342
1.672.661

Total

753,938
5,591,715
3,149.492
625.679

10,120,824
1.672.661

$  9.056.482 $ 2.737.003 $ 11.793.485
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10. Functional Expense

The Organization provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Given the
Organization is a service organization, expenses are allocated between healthcare, administrative
and support and fundraising services based on the percentage of direct care wages to total wages,
with the exception of program supplies which are 100% healthcare in nature. Expenses related to
providing these services are as follows:

Healthcare

Services

Administrative

and Support
Services

Fundraising
Services Total

2021

11.

Salaries and wages $ 11,626,356 $  1,589,462 $ 455,622 $ 13,671,440

Employee benefits 2,146,878 293,504 84,133 2,524,515

Contracted services 901,023 165,775 8,765 1,075,563

Program supplies 1,980,697 - - 1,980,697

Information technology 545,120 74,524 21,363 641,007

Occupancy 698,013 95,427 27,354 820,794

Other 1,127,805 154,183 44,198 1,326,186

Depreciation 261,657 35,772 10,254 307,683

Interest expense 5.294 724 207 6.225

Total $ 19.292.843 $  2.409.371 $ 651.896 $ 22.354.110

Administrative

Healthcare and Support Fundraising
Services Services Services Total

2020

Salaries and wages $ 10.678,936 $  1,479,752 $ 413,029 $ 12,571,717

Employee benefits 1,915,912 265,482 74,102 2,255,496

Contract services 787,581 186,356 11,291 985,228

Program supplies 1,519,931 - - 1,519,931

Information technology . 642,032 88,964 24,832 755,828

Occupancy 667,912 92,551 25,833 786,296

Other 1,084.652 •  150,297 41,952 1,276,901

Depreciation 243,493 33,740 9,418 286,651

Interest expense 2.643 366 102 3.111

Total $ 17.543.092 $  2.297.508 $ 600.559 $ 20.441.159

Retirement Plans

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under IRC Section 401 (k) that covers

substantially all employees..For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization
contributed $222,748 and $211,632, respectively, to the plan.
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The Organization has established an unqualified deferred compensation plan under IRC Section
457(b) for certain key employees of the Organization. The Organization did not contribute to the
plan during the year ended December 31, 2021. The balance of the deferred compensation plan
amounted to $57,391 and $44,809 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

12. Medical Malpractice Insurance

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (PICA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of December 31,
2021, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management,
will be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and additional medical malpractice insurance
coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The
Organization intends to renew the additional medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-
made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

13. Lease Commitments

The Organization leases office space and certain other office equipment under noncancelable
operating leases. Future minimum lease payments under these leases, including the lease for the
new Portsmouth facility which was occupied in February 2022, are as follows:

2022 $ 692,777
2023 494,060
2024 401,261

2025 364,805
2026 360,167
Thereafter 2.399.601

Total $ 4.712.671

Rental expense amounted to $362,612 and $346,489 for the year ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

14. Food Vouchers

The Organization acts as a conduit for the State of New Hampshire's Special Supplemental Food
Program for Women, Infants and Children (WiC). The value of food vouchers distributed by the
Organization was $1,323,285 and $1,071,367 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. These amounts are not included in the accompanying financial statements as they
are not part of the contract the Organization has with the State of New Hampshire for the WIC
program.
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Federal Grant/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Direct

Health Center Program Cluster

Consolidated Health Centers (Community Health Centers,
Migrant Health Centers, Health Care for the Homeless,
and Public Housing Primary Care)

COVID-19 Consolidated Health Centers (Community Health
Centers, Migrant Health Centers, Health Care for the
Homeless, and Public Housing Primary Care)

Total AL 93.224

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New and Expanded
Services Under the Health Center Program

Total Health Center Program Cluster

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for Capital Development in
Health Centers

COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund

Direct

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of
Regional and National Significance

Pass-Throuah

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of
Regional and National Significance

Total AL 93.243

Pass-Throuah

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Emergency Preparedness

Public Health Emergency Preparedness
Public Health Emergency Preparedness

Total AL 93.069

Childhood Lead. Poisoning Prevention Projects, State
and Local Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention and
Surveillance of Blood Lead Levels in Children

Assistance

Listing
Number

Pass-Through

Contract Number

Total

Federal

Expenditures

93.224

93.224

93.527

93.526

93.498

93.243

93.243

93.069

93.069

93.069

Immunization Cooperative Agreements
Immunization Cooperative Agreements

Total AL 93.268

93.197

93.268

93.268

102-500731/92052410

102-500731/90077028

074-500589/90077028

102-500731/90077410

102-500731/90036000

102-500731/90004100

102-500731/90036000

102-500731/90004100

102-500731/90023010

102-500731/90023205

1,015,530

1,145,830

2,161,360

3,063,823

5,225,183

3,301

221,102

387,416

65,117

452,533

46,089

31,089

4,082

81,260

1,943

12,728

31,463

44.191

COVID-19 Public Health Emergency Response: Cooperative
Agreement for Emergency Response: Public Health Crisis
Response 93.354 102-500731/90027027 22,585

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States

Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States

Total AL 93.994

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U. S. Department of Aoriculture

Pass-Throuah

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women,
Infants, and Children

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Pass-Throuah

City of Portsmouth New Hampshire
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

U.S. Federal Communications Commission

Pass-Throuah

Community Health Access Network
COVID-19 Telehealth Program

U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Pass-Throuah

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COVID-19 Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially
Declared Disasters)

Total Federal Awards, All Programs

93.991

93.994

93.994

102-500731/92057502

074-500585/92057502

102-50073,1/90080400

102-500731/90004009

10.557

14.218

32.006

102-500734

n/a

n/a

Year Ended December 31, 2021 .

Federal Grant/Pass-Thrbugh
Grantor/Proaram Title

Assistance

Listing

Number

Pass-Through

Contract Number

Total

Federal

Exoendltures

Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 102-500734/42107306 14,122

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 502-500891/45030206 116,599

Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program 93.645 102-500734/42106802 2,870

Social Services Block Grant

Social Services Block Grant

93.667

93.667

102-500731/93017858

102-500734/42106603

14,706

48,672

Total AL 93.667 63,378

National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 93.889 102-500731/90077700

074-500589/90077700 '  12,822

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

93.959

93.959

93.959

93.959 •

074-500585/92057502

074-500585/92057504

074-500585/92058506

074-500585/90001022

59,554

29,592

26,036

15,642

Total AL 93.959 130,824

16,128

. 60,437

11,013

71,450

6,480,289

489,481

10,125

41,597

97.036 102-500731/95010690

'103-502507/95010690 174,253

$  7,195,745

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) are
reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost
principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance),
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

2. De Minimis indirect Cost Rate

Greater Seacoast Community Health (the Organization) has elected not to use the 10% de minimis
indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

3. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule includes the federal grant activity of the Organization. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Because the
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Organization, it is not intended
to and does not present the finahcial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the
Organization. ' •
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Greater Seacoast Community Health

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards -
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the.Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Greater Seacoast Community Health (the
Organization), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, and the related
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 23, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's
Internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a cpntrol does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely, basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify ail deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona
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Board of Directors

Greater Seacoast Community Health

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's* financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under GovemmenMuc//f/ng Sfanc/ards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Portland, Maine
May 23, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Greater Seacoast Community Health

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited Greater Seacoast Community Health's (the Organization) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the Office of Management and Budget
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for
the year ended December 31, 2021. The Organization's major federal program is identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
.Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization's federal programs.
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Board of Directors

Greater Seacoast Community Health

Auditor's ResponslbHities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error; and express an
opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Organization's compliance with the
requirements of the major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to the

audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test

and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-001. Our opinion on the major federal program
is not modified with respect to this matter.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the
Organization's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization's response was not
subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.
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Greater Seacoast Community Health

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Portland, Maine
May 23, 2022

-31 -



DocuSign Envelope ID; 364561EC-56BE-4AFO-8024-2D7701A73E5D

,  GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section 1. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reportirig:

Unmodified

Material weakness(es) identified? □ Yes 0 No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

□ 0considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? □ . Yes 0 No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified: □ Yes 0 No
Significant deficiency{ies) identified that are not

□ 0considered to be material weakness{es)? Yes None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
0 □in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes No

Identification of major programs:

Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Health Center Program Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section 2. Financial Statement Findings

None

$750,000

0  Yes □ No
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section 3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Number:

Finding Type:

Information on the

Federal Program:

Criteria:

Condition Found

and Context:

Cause and Effect:

2021-001

Compliance - Special Tests and Provisions

Program Name: Health Center Program Cluster (AL numbers 93.224
and 93.527)

Grant Award: 5 H80CS04210-16 from May 1. 2020 through April 30, 2021
and 5 H80CS04210-17 from May 1. 2021 through April 30, 2022

Agency: U.S. Department,of Health and Human Services.
Health Resources and Services Administration

Pass-Through Entity: N/A

In accordance with Section 330(k){3)(G) of the PHS Act (42 U.S. Code §
254b), as an FQHC, the Organization must have a sliding fee discount
program in which the Organization's fee schedule is discounted based on
a patient's ability to pay.

The Organization has not applied sliding fee discounts to patient charges
consistent with its sliding fee discount program. Through testing a
statistically valid sample of transactions for the appropriate application of
the Organization's sliding fee discount program to 25 Individual patient
balances, we noted the sliding fee discount' applied was not consistent
with the Organization's sliding fee discount policy for two dental patients.
One patient qualified for a Category 2 discount based on income and
family size but was awarded a Category 1 discount, which resulted in the
patient paying $82 less than required under the program. One patient had
dental service which included an outside lab fee, which is not subject to
discount, and received an incorrect discount due to a system error with
the calculation of the lab fee resulting in the patient paying $55 less than
required under the program.

The Organization has a complex dental sliding fee discount schedule
which includes flat fee amounts for Category 1 patients and percentage
discounts for the other discount categories as well as excluded outside
lab fees. As a result of this complexity, the Organization has implemented
monthly monitoring procedures which include the sampling of discounts
provided to ensure the discounts were applied to patient accounts
appropriately. The volume of discounts provided to patients annually does
not allow for 100% review of all patient discounts and the inherent nature
of sampling will not result in all errors will be identified and corrected. As a
result, it is possible the Organization may not apply sliding fee discounts
to patient charges consistent with its sliding fee discount program.
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Concluded)

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section 3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Concluded)

Finding Number: 2021-001 {Concluded)

NoneQuestioned Costs:

Repeat Finding:

Recommendation:

Views of a Responsible
Official and Corrective

Action Plan:

No

We recommend management review the complexity of the Organization's
dental sliding fee discount schedule and consider whether modifications
to the scale would better allow the billing system to correctly apply sliding
fee discounts to dental patients without the need for staff correction. We
also recommend management consider increasing the number of dental
transactions reviewed as part of the Organization's internal monitoring
procedures.

Management agrees with the finding and will review the dental sliding fee
discount schedule.and internal monitoring procedures for opportunities for
improvement to increase compliance with the program requirements.
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Board of Directors

Calendar Year 2023

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Goodwin Families LilacCity
Community Health First PediatricS'

Name/Address Occupation

Chair

Jennifer Glidden

Alton Bay, NH

USDA Program Specialist

Vice Chair

Dennis Vcilleux

Portsmouth, NH

Accounting Manager
Relyco

Board Treasurer

Jim Sepanski-
Hampton, NH

Financial Executive

Board Secretar>'

David B. Staples, DDS
Dover, NH

Retired Dentist

Laura Belsky
Portsmouth, NH

Retired Nurse

Andrea Borowieeki

Portsmouth, NH

Rockland Trust

Jody Hoffer Gittell
Portsmouth, NH

Professor

Valerie Goodwin

York Harbor, ME

Retired Business

Abigail Sykas Karoutas
Dover, NH

Attorney

Cleveland, Waters and Bass

Allison Neal

Barrington, NH

Education Consultant

Allison Mulligan
Dover, NH

Consultant

Christine Perkins

Somersworth, NH

CPA

Wipfli

Kathy Scheu
North Hampton, NH

Medical/Laboratory Product Sales

Jeffrey Segil, MD
Dover, NH

Physician-OB/GYN
WDH
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JANET M. LAATSCH

Objective: To utilize my leadership skills to create a dynamic, sustainable non-profit
organization.

WORK EXPERIENCE:

Greater Seacoast Community Health, 2018-Prescnt
Somersworth, Portsmouth, Rochester, NH

Chief Executive Officier

Accomplishments:

•  Successful merger of two FQHC's and one private practice in 2018
•  Secured a new location for Portsmouth by 6/30/21

•  Improved sustainability of the Portsmouth and Rochester locations
•  Increased retention rate to 98% in 2019 and 2020

Goodwin Community Health (GCH).
Somersworth, NH
Chief Executive Officer 2005-2018

Accomplishments:

•  Successfully retained all Directors and Physicians

^ • Built relationships with donors, foundations, local and state

representatives and other non-profit and for-profit organizations
•  Retention of an active Board of Directors

•  Improvement of patient outcomes

•  Successfully implemented mental health integration program

•  Successfully acquired a for-profit mental health organization
•  Developed a new partnership with Noble High School

•  Developed a new partnership with Southeastern NH Services

•  Obtained new grant funding of over $7.0 million

•  Expansion of donor base

•  Development of a corporate compliance program

•  Merged the public health and safety council under AGCHC

Responsibilities:

Finance Director

Accomplishments:

Oversight of operations, finance, personnel and fund development

Grant writing and donor development
New business development

Compliance with all federal and state regulations

Build relationships and partnerships locally and statewide

Strategic planning

Report directly to the Board of Directors

2002-2005

Brought in over $3.0 million in grant funds for the organization
Obtained Federally Qualified Health Center status in 2004

Designed and implemented a successful new dental program
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•  Achieved a financial surplus annually

Responsibilities:

•  Responsible for all financial transactions, billing, collections, patient
accounts

•  Strategic planning as it relates to capital funding
•  Budget development, cost/benefit analysis of existing programs and

potential new programs

•  Development and implementation of an annual development plan
•  Research, write, submit and provide follow-up reports for grant funds
•  Oversee human resource functions of the organization

Grant Writer/Per Diem Nurse 2001-2002

Grant Writing Services,
N.Hampton, NH

Sole Proprietor 1999-2001
Accomplishments:

•  Successfully researched and submitted grants for health and
educational organizations totaling over $l50k

Responsibilities:

•  Research private, industry, slate and federal funds for non-profit
organizations

North Shore Medical Center (Partners Health Care) 1991-1999
Salem, MA

Acting Chief Operations Officer for the
North Shore Communit>' Health Center 1997-1999

Accomplishments:

•  Successfully submitted their competitive Federal grant and other
state grants

•  Recruited a medical director and re-negotiated existing provider
contracts to include productivity standards

•  Re-designed operations to improve productivity
•  Incorporated the hospital's medical residency program into the

Health Center

•  Achieved a financial surplus for the first time in five years
•  Developed a quality improvement program and framework

Responsibilities:

•  Placed at the Health Center by the North Shore Medical Center to
revamp operations and improve the cash flow for the organization

•  Reported directly to the Board of Directors

EDUCATION:

University of New Hampshire: M.B.A.

Durham, N.H. ' Concentration in Finance 1991.
Northern Michigan University: B.S.N.

Marquette, M.l. Minor in Biology 1981

LICENSES/CERTIFICATES:
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Real Estate Broker

N.H. Nursing License

PROFESIONAL:

Member of the National Association of Community .Health Centers
Previous Board member of the United Way of the Greater Seacoast
Treasurer for the Health and Safety Council of Strafford County
Board member of the Community Health Network Access (CHAN)
Board member of the Rochester Rotary, slotted for President in 2011
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Erin E. Ross

Objective
Obtain a position in Health Care, which will continue to build knowledge and skills from both education and experiences

gained.

Qualifications
Mature, energetic individual possessing management experience, organizational skills, multi-tasking abilities, good work

initiative and communicates well with internal and external contacts. Proficient in computer skills.

Education
September 1998 - May 2002 Bachelor of Science in Health Management & Policy

University of New Hampshire
Durham, New Hampshire 03824

Related Experience
July 2011 - Present Chief Financial Officer

Goodwin Community Health

•  Responsible for financial oversight of center to include supervision of accountant, bookkeeper, billing
department and all clinical administrative staff.

•  Assist Executive Director in budgeting process each fiscal year for center.
•  Generate and assist with financial aspects of all center grants received.

•  Complete on an as needed basis finance analysis's of various agency programs.

•  Participate in agency fiscal audit at the end of each fiscal year.
•  Member of Board of Directors level Finance Committee

August 2006 - June 2011 Service Expansion Director
Avis Goodwin Community Health Center

•  Responsible for the overall function of the Winter St location of Avis Goodwin Community Health Center.
•  Maintain ail clinical equipment and order all necessary supplies.
•  Coordinate the scheduling of ail clinical and administrative staff in the office.

•  Assist with the continued integration of dental services and now mental health services to existing primary
care services.

•  Assist with the integration of private OB/GYN practice into Avis Goodwin Community Health Center.

•  Organize patient outcome data collection and quality improvement measures to monitor multiple aspects
and assure sustainabiiity for Avis Goodwin Community Health Center.

January 2005 - August 2006 Site Manager, Dover Location & Front Office Manager
Avis Goodwin Community Health Center

Responsible for the overall function of the Dover location of Avis Goodwin Community Health Center.
Maintain all clinical equipment and order all necessary supplies.

Assist with the continued integration of dental services and now mental health services to existing primary
care services.

Coordinate the scheduling of all clinical and administrative staff in the office.

Organize patient outcome data collection and quality improvement measures to monitor multiple aspects
and assure sustainabiiity for Avis Goodwin Community Health Center.

Supervise, hire and evaluate front office staff of both Avis Goodwin Community Health Center locations.
Develop and implement policies and procedures for the smooth functioning of the front office.

May 2004 - January 2010 Dental Coordinator
Avis Goodwin Community Health Center

•  Supervise, hire and evaluate dental staff, including Dental Assistant and Hygienists.
•  Acted as general contractor during construction and renovation of existing facility for 4 dental exam rooms.

•  Responsible for the operations of the dental center, development of educational programs for providers and
staff and supervision of the school-based dental program.

•  Developed policy and procedure manual, including OSHA and Infection Control protocols.
•  Organize patient outcome data collection and quality improvement measures to monitor dental program and

assure sustainabiiity.
•  Maintain all dental equipment and order all dental supplies.
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•  Coordinate grant fund requirements to multiple agencies on a quarterly basis.
•  Oversee all aspects of billing for dental services, including training existing billing department staff.

July 2003 - May 2004 Administrative Assistant to Medical'Director
Avis Goodwin Community Health Center

•  Assist with Quality Improvement program by attending all meetings, generating monthly minutes
documenting all aspects of the agenda and reporting quarterly data followed by the agency.

•  Generate a monthly report reflecting provider productivity including number patients seen by each provider
and no show and cancellation rates of appointments.

•  Served as a liaison between patients and Chief Financial Officer to effectively handle all patient concerns
and compliments.

•  Established and re-created various forms and worksheets used by many departments.

December 2002 - May 2004 Billing Associate
Avis Goodwin Community Health Center

Organize and respond to correspondence, rejections and payments from multiple insurance companies.
Created an Insurance Manual for Front Office Staff and Intake Specialists as an aide to educate patients on
their insurance.

Responsible for credentialing and Re-credentialing of providers, including physicians, nurse practitioners
and physician assistants, within the agency and to multiple insurance companies.
Apply knowledge of computer skills, including Microsoft Office, Logician, PCN and Cenlricity.
Designed a statement to generate from an existing Microsoft Access database for patients on payment plans
to receive monthly statements.

•  Assist Front Office Staff during times of planned and unexpected staffing shortages.

June 2002 - December 2002 Billing Associate
Automated Medical Systems
Salem, New Hampshire 03079

•  Communicate insurance benefits and explain payments and rejections to patients about their accounts.
•  Responsible for organizing and responding to correspondence received for multiple doctor offices.
•  Determine effective ways for rejected insurance claims to get paid through communicating with insurance

companies and patients.

•  Apply knowledge of computer skills, including Microsoft Office, Accuterm and Docstar.

Work Experience
October 1998 - May 2002 Building Manager

Memorial Union Building - UNH
Durham, New Hampshire 03824

Recognized as a Supervisor, May 2001 -May 2002.

Supervised Building Manager and Information Center staff.
Responsible for managing and documenting department monetary transactions.
Organized and led employee meetings on a weekly basis.
Established policies and procedures for smooth functioning of daily events.
Oversaw daily operations of student union building, including meetings and campus events.
Served as a liaison between the University of New Hampshire, students, faculty and community.
Organized and maintained a weekly list of rental properties available for students.
Developed and administered new ideas for increased customer service efficiency.

References

Available upon request
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JOHN BURNS

EXPERIENCE

Chief Recovery Officer, Greater Seacoast Community' Health
Director, SOS Recovery Community Organization Nov 2016-Prcsent

•  Sen'e as officer overseeing recovery supports for 3 federally qualified health centers including:
Goodwin Communit)' Health, Families First Health Centers and Lilac Pediatrics.

.  • Director of SOS Recovery Communit)' Organization overseeing day to day operations and strategic
direction of 3 recover)' communit)' centers.

•  Supervise and Manage all operations and a staff of 20
•  Oversight and development of the strategic plan.
•  Fiscal management of the operational budget that has increased from $220,000 per year to over

$1,200,000 in less than 4 )'ears.

• Oversee and coordinate programming and volunteer efforts.
•  Grant writing and oversight of strategic development efforts.
•  Has implemented new programs unique to the recovery communit)' in both Strafford Count)'

including a 24/7 recovery coaching contract with Wentworth Douglass Hospital.
•  Implemented one of the states largest criminal justice recover)' based programs with "Peer-Strength"

being operated in Strafford Count)', Rockingham Count)', Coos Count)' and Cheshire County, NH.
•  Implementing first NH Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion (LEAD) in Dover and Farmington,

NH

Director, Safe Harbor Recovery Center June 2016 — Nov 2016
Granite Pathways & Fedcap Rehabilitation Services - Portsmouth, NH

Fiscal management of the operational budget
Oversee and coordinate a calendar of events for recover)' support ser\'ices and peer support
groups

Project management of Communit)' Access to Recover)' with local hospitals, police departments
and recovery center.

Responsible for grant reporting and ensuring qualit)' data collection efforts are maintained by
support workers

Coordinate with peer leaders, volunteers, and comrriunit)' leaders to facilitate effective
communit)' outreach, education, and awareness raising

Facilitate stakeholder collaborations to ensure enrollment targets for various projects and
adequate reach populations of focus

Supervision of trained peer leaders and volunteers
Assisting and informing the broader Granite Pathways and Fedcap NE Region scopes of work
by attending quarterly meetings, providing quarterly reports and serving as an access point for
NH Ser\'icc Framework

Northeast Regional Sales Manager, United Site Services Sept 2014 - Feb 2016
United Site Services Westborough, MA

Successfully direct a team of eleven account managers throughout the Northeast, USA.
Oversight and management of P&iL and sales budget of $37 million.
Successfully implemented and oversaw six acquisitions totaling over $6 million in revenue.
Achieved organic growth of 11% in 2015 in construction market growing less than 2% annuall)'.
Achieved and exceeded Budget targets in 3 of 5 quarters.

Northeast Regional Sales Manager . April 2009 - Sept 2014
State Chemical Solutions Cleveland, OH

•  Successfully direct a team of seven sales managers and sixt)' sales representatives throughout the Northeast, USA.
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•  Chosen by Executive V.P. to help implement 2011 initiative to transition from commission based sales
organization to a salary sales and service based organization.

•  Successfully implemented growth strateg)' and initiatives to show sales improvement in first two years.
•  Improved sales declines in region for previous five years from over eight percent multiple year gross losses to

achieving consistent growth trend and achieving sales growth targets-above company targets.

•  Successfully took over and have made a number of successful managerial transitions within the region and poised
it for continued growth in 2013.

•  Regional Sales Manager of the Quarter - second quarter, 2012.

District Sales Manager , Nov 2006 - April 2009
State Chemical Solutions Cleveland, OH

•  Successfully built and managed a team of ten sales representatives throughout New England.
•  Consistently recognized as top performer and awarded district sales manager of month twice.
• . Successfully achieved and exceeded growth, sales, and earnings targets in 2008.
•  Successfully took over and merged two shrinking districts within twelve months of being hired and showed

immediate growth as well as territory expansion from nine to ten territories.
•  Appointed as a leading district manager to District Sales Manager Council to work with upper management in

achieving company strategic goals and strategics and act as liason to other district managers.
•  Recruited, hired and trained two recipients of company's distinguished Rookie of the Month sales award as well as

one recipient of the Rookie of the Year award.

Operations Manager Jan 2001 - Nov 2006
F.W. Webb Company Dover, NH

• Managed operations for large branch location and two satellite locations in wholesale plumbing and heating
industr)'.

•  Successfully exceeded profitability goals five consecudve years with gross sales of over $21 million'annually and
recognized as top performer each year.

• Managed over fift)' sales and warehouse employees and over $5 million in inventor}' and improved inventor}' cost
controls by improving inventor}' turnover and sales fulfillment rates.

•  Successfully led and implemented ISO 9001 certifications and developed a full safet}' program.
•  Led preparation, oversight and implementation with general manager of both P&L and capital budgets each year

and nearly doubled net profit goals each year.
• Directed all aspects of hiring, training and branch personnel issues.

Outside Sales Sept 1995 -Jan 2001
F.W. Webb Company Dover, NH

• Managed and grew gross sales from 1 million dollars annually to over 3 million while maintaining gross margins
exceeding company targets and expectations.

•  Achieved and exceeded sales growth ever}' year and recognized annually as a top performer.
•  Appointed to Industrial PVF Steering Committee to assist in corporate strategics for Industrial PVF sales,

distribution, and inventor}' management policy.

COMMUNITY SERVICE EXPERIENCE:

Connections for Health, NH IDN Region 6 Executive Governance
June 2016 — Present
Appointed as recovery support ser\'ices representative to district 6 executive governance committee in Sept 2016. Have also
actively ser\'ed on communit}' engagement committee and have been involved in facilitating communit}' outreach efforts and
focus groups on the DSRJP/IDN waiver program and integration of care efforts.

Safe Harbor Recovery Center Sept 2015 -June 2016
Hire in paid role as director of peer recover}' organization since June 2016. Have engaged as project manager through
construction and build out of center as a volunteer prior to Hiring. As director have been responsible for coordinating and
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management of all projects, scheduling and volunteer organization. J-lave managed start-up and facilitation of a peer advisory
council and multiple volunteer committees. Responsible for fiscal budget management as well as integration of ser\'ices into
the communit)' with communit)' care teams, dsrip and idn projects, homeless coalitions and treatment providers.

Families Hoping and Coping June 2014 - Present
Founder and President of non-profit peer based family support group ser\ting families in Strafford Count)' with three chapters
meeting weekly. Founded this in June and have had additional chapters throughout seacoast and Strafford Count)' NH to
serve family members and loved ones of individuals struggling with substance use disorders.

OneVoice Strafford County Opioid Taskforce Januar)' 2014 — Present
Member and stakeholder of count)'-wide taskforce made up of law enforcement, healthcare providers, treatment and recovery
advocates and family members that was active in rolling out multiple summits, events and advocacy efforts to bring exposure
to opioid epidemic and substance misuse in Strafford Count)'.

Hope on Haven Hill August 2015 — J une 2016
Treasurer and Board Member for non-profit long term residential trcamient program for pregnant women and their children
in Rochester, NH stru^ling with substance use disorders..

SOS Recovery Centers August 2014 —June 2016
Serve on the leadership team appointed to act as liasons to the communit)' volunteers in the process of helping to design,
implement and oversee the creation of three communit)' recover)' centers in Strafford Count)' scheduled to start opening in
June and July of 2016. •

CERTIFICATIONS. RECOGNITION. AND MEMBERSHIP:

Connecticut Community for Addiction Recovery Trained Recovery Coach and Recovery Coach Trainer
Trained as a trainer for CCAR Ethical Considerations for Recover)' Coaches
Trained as a trainer for SOS Developing Excellence in Recovery Coaching
Over 30 hours of formal Motivational Interviewing training
Developed and trained approved NH Licensing Board for Alcohol and other Drug curriculums for SOS
Recovery Communit)' Organization in: Peer Recovery Support Supervision; Crisis Navigation; Facilitator
Training; Compassion Fatigue and Self-Care, as well as ethical considerations in recovery community
organizations and trainings on gossip and social connections. '
Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW)
NAMI certified facilitator

AHA CPR and First Aid Certified

Connect Suicide Prevention trained

Completed Trauma Informed Care training
2015 New Futures Advocacy in Action Award: Statewide public advocacy award presented by New Futures in
Concord, NH for advocacy on legislative policies related to opioid epidemic and substance misuse disorders.
Pursuing NH Certified Recover)' Coach Support Worker (CRSW) credential; 90% complete
Current member of NH Providers Association and NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association

EDUCATION

Masters of Business Administration, Southern NH Universit)' May 2001

•  GPA: 3.88 and President's List Manchester, NH

Bachelor of Science, Business Administration, Southern NH Universit)' May 1999

•  GPA: 3.82 and President's List Manchester, NH

Associates Degree, Paralegal Studies, Mclntosh College May 1995

•  GPA: 3.93 and President's List, High Honors Dover, NH
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Amber Glennon

Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Work Experience

Family Recovery Support Coordinator
SOS Recovery Community Organization - Rochester, NH

February 2023 to Present

• Support participants with getting insurance, food stamps, a driver's license, birth certificate and social

security card -

• Support participants in finding a detox, inpatient or outpatient treatment, transitional living and sober

living

• Support family's with tools to better there relationship with there children

• Teach classes of family recovery support

• Harm Reduction

• Doing inventory on our harm Reduction supplies

• Keeping track of the supplies we use each day an how much we use

• Also do weekly, bi-weekly or monthly check ins with my participants to support them in any way and

just be there for them to talk as well whenever they need the support

Recovery Support Specialist
Green mountain treatment center - Effingham, NH

April 2022 to Present

• Support clients

• Encourage clients

• Deliver meals

• Medication Pass

• Drive clients to appointments

• Email updates

• CPR, CPI

• Suicide prevention

• Peer support worker

Owner/Manager

Amgcontracterservices - Rochester. NH

January 2015 to Present

• Make ads

• Create a report with customers

•Find jobs

• Hire employees

• Fire employee
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• Payroll

• Keep track of hours

• Clean up material

• Get material for each job

Dunkin Donuts Manager

Dunkin' Donuts - Rochester, NH

May 2019 to March 2021

• Create schedule

• Order product

• Inventory

• Training

• Interviewing

• Check hours each week

• Handle customer complaints

• Motivate crew members

Supervisor
JCS ENTERPRISES - Concord, NH

January 2016 to August 2020

• Answer phones

• Make appointments

• Sell timeshares

• Interviewing

• Hiring

• File the paperwork

• Running compliance

• Training

• Getting the numbers

Education

High school diploma in G.E.D
Spaulding High School - Rochester. NH

January 2009 to January 2009

Skills

Interviewing

Supervising Experience

Management

Store Management Experience

Presentation Skills

Research

Office Management
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Event Planning

Customer Service (8 years)

Computer Skills

Cash Handling

Construction Experience

Business Development

Driving Experience

Data Entry

Experience with Children

English

Food Service

Front Desk

Kitchen Experience

Leadership Experience

Microsoft Office

Microsoft Word

Microsoft PowerPoint

Microsoft Outlook

Organizational Skills

Office Experience

Outside Sales

Project Management

Restaurant Experience

Retail Sales

Recruiting

Sales Experience

Warehouse Experience

Web Services

Windows

Sales

Negotiation

Mentoring

Certifications and Licenses

CPR

July 2022 to Present

CPI

July 2022 to Present

Suicide prevention
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July 2022 to Present

Peer support worker
July 2022 to Present

HIV, Aids and hepatitis prevention for recovery coaches
February 2023 to February 2023

Coaching recovery: The art & science of peer assisted recovery
February 2023 to February 2023

Ethical considerations in peer assisted recovery
February 2023 to February 2023

Nurturing parenting program for families in substance abuse treatment or
recovery

Februaiy 2023 to February 2023

Additional Information

I am a very hard worker an stive to make it to the top when I work! I always show up for my shifts an

help when there short staffed. I do the best that I can in every situation an never get overwhelmed. I

work very hard to show people that I am dedicated to something I am passionate about, an I am very

passionate about helping others!
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Caitlin Fillion

Compassionate and attentive Family Recovery Support Coordinator. Eagerly willing to

provide emotional and social support to family members affected by substance use

disorder.

Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Work Experience

Family Recovery Support Coordinator
SOS Recovery Community Organization • Rochester, NH

November 2022 to Present

Peer-based support services while utilizing interpersonal communication and active listening skills with

participants

Facilitate Family All Recovery weekly meetings

Facilitate Families in Recovery weekly meetings

Customer Service Representative
U-Haul - Dover, NH

July 2021 to Present

Handled customer inquiries, answered questions, and resolved problems in a timely manner

Developed arid trained three new customer service representatives on the proper handling of customer

inquiries

Created a new customer database by entering customer information into a database

Kept accurate records of all interactions, including customer names, addresses, phone numbers, credit

card information, and product sales

Dairy Associate
Market Basket - Somersworth, NH

May 2018 to October 2020

Organized products with sell by dates and focused on keeping products safe and clean.

Executed company policies, procedures, and safety standards to ensure the proper cleanliness and safety

of the dairy department.

Provided customer service and was involved in training 1-2 new team members each month

Offered strong customer service skills, keeping customers satisfied.

Seasonal Cleaner

Moody, ME .

April 2019 to September 2019

Maintained properties through out the summer time.

Organized and clean properties before and after each guest.

Actively sought out new customer's to create a consisten schedule of properties.
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Cared for the properties diligently and offered strong customer service skills keeping all clients and

guests satisfied.

Department Associate
Market Basket - Tilton, NH

June 2011 to March 2017

Executed company policies, procedures, and safety standards to ensure the proper cleanliness and safety

of the deli and kitchen departments.

Willingly worked between three departments when needed to train new employees or work extra hours.

Developed relationships with many new staff members while being employed for this company for over

nine years.

Quickly adapted to new departments to learn new tasks.

Offered strong customer service skills, keeping customers satisfied.

Education .

Bachelor's Degree in Human Services
Southern New Hampshire University - Manchester, NH

January 2022 to Present

Lakes Region Community College - Laconia, NH

December 2011

Skills

• Customer service

• Communication skills

• Computer literacy

.• Supervising experience
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Greater Seacoast Community Health
Key Personnel

Name'. ' ; Job-Title •• _ ' * '
' -ir ' ' . " . ' ̂

Salary Arndunt Paid '
''from this Contract. , '

Janet Laatsch Chief Executive Officer $0

Erin Ross Chief Financial Officer $0

John Bums Chief Recovery Officer $6864

Amber Glennon Family Recovery Support
Coordinator

$34944

Caitlin Howard Family Recovery Support
Coordinator

19760

V '
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Lori A. SbiUaettc
Comnfulooer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH A^a) HUMAN SERVICES

GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ONAtCOHOL H OTHER DRVGS

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 02301
. 603-271-9564 1-800-804-0909

Fax: 003-271-6(05 TDDAccexs: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.ah.eov/dcbc3/b<ta9

May 2. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Govemof:'s Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs (the Departmerit),to amend
an existing contract with Greater Seacoast Community Health (VC #166629-8001), Sorriersworth,
New Hampshire, for Family Support Coordinator services statewide, by exercising a contract
renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $75,000 from $150,000 to $225,000 and
extending the. cornpletlon date from June 30, 2022 tp June 30, 2023, effective July 1, 2022 or
upon Governor arid Council approval, whichever is later. 100% bther Funds (Governor's
Commission Funds).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22, 2021, item
#23.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2023, with the
authority to adjust budget line iterhs within the price limitation and ericumbrances between state
fiscal years through the. Budget OfRce, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-33820000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SV8, HHS: DIVISfON FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job
Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

proig'Syc 92058501
$75,000 $0. $75,000

1

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

.  Prog Svc
92058501

$75,000 $0 $75;000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc

92058501
$0 $75,000 $75,000,

Total $150,000 $75,000 $225,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to continue to provide family support group coordlriatlori
services'for fartiilles.of individuals with Substance Use Disorders (SUp) and/or co-occurring
mental heaith disorders, The (Contractor wlli continue to:

Tht DeparlnxttU cfUcalih and Human ScrtAwt'Mission is to Join'communities and families,
in preuiding opporUinities for eilizeni io achieiK health and independence.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the HonoraUe Council
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•  Increase access to family support groups as rneasured by number of support
groups, and number of New Hampshire residents served by the groups;

•  Recruit, ertroll, and provide supervision and supi^rt to family siippprt group
facilitators;

•  COoi^inate family support group facilitator trainings; and

• As^ss the family support group network and identify areas where new or
additional family support groups are needed by identifying locations of current
groups by Regional Public Health Network (RPHN) region; using that information
to identify underserved regiori; and working with local and regionat stakeholders in
those regions to recruit, train and support facliitatore In establishing and leading
new groups.

During the first two quarters of SPY 2022, the Contractor:

•  Facilitated the participation of 552 individuals In family support groups;

• . Established two new family support groups; and

•  Trained eight riew.family support group facilitators.

The Contractor is expected to achieve the following outputs, in SPY 2023:

•  1,400-individuals will participate In family support groups;

•  2 hew faniily support groups yiri'll be established; and

A minimum of 10 (ten) new family recovery support group facilitators will be
recruited and trained.

The .Contractor provides training and support for family .support services group facilitators
to brgahize and facilitate groups for individuals with loved ones who struggle With substance
misuse. Services include substance misuse education, access to resources to assist with
siibstarice misuse and related needs, and peer-to-peer support and mentoring. These services
help participants to increase their kriowledge around substarice misuse, individual and family
resiliency, skills for supporting their loved on with a substance use disorder, and ability to
contribute to their families, and communities as a whoje.

The Department will monitor Contractor performance through quarterly, reporting on
staffing and supervision, family support senrices (FSS) training curriculum development, Family
Support Services facilitator recruiting, training and Support, FSS marketing and promotion, and
family support groups.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1,
Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions, Subsection 1.1 of the attached contract^ the parties
have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,-contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services availabie funding, agreerneht of the parties, and Governor and
-Council approval. The Department is seeking to exercise one (1) of the four (4) years of available
renewal.

Should the Goyemor and-Executive Council not authorize this request, the availability of
family support seri/ices groups will decrease, pptentlally'resulting in lower individual resiliency
and community.cpntributipn and decreased ability to help individuals who misuse substances with
accessing necessary services. Substance misuse may consequently continue for longer than It
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Otherwise vrauld have, Increasi^ social, emotional, physical, and financial impacts of stress
and trdurna for both'the'indiyiduals who are misusing substances and their loved ones.

Area served: Statewide.

In.the evfsnt thatthe Other Funds tjecome no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to supfMft this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment#!

Thjs Amendment to the Family Support Coordinator Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of. Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Greater Seacoast
Community Health ("the Contractor").

WHER^S, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
oh January 22, 2021 (Item #23). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and condition's specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1, Revisions to Form ,P-37, General Provisions, Subsection 1.1,
the Contract may. be amended upon written agreement of the parties aiid appfoval from the Govemor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement'and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and • . ,

NOVy THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend;as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block '1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block !8, Price Limitation, to read:

$225,000

3. Add Exhibit C-3 Amendment #1, Budget, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Greater Seacoast Community Health A-S-1.2 Contractor lnltials

RFP-2021-BPAS.08-FAMIL-01-A01. Page'lpfS Dato 5/2/2022
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All,terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendrheht remain In full force arid effect.
This'Amendment shall-be effective July 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is
later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/2/2022

Date

■D<KuSien*if by;

Title: Director

Greater Seacoast Cpmmunity Health

5/2/2022

Date

Oo««SJon«<l by:

I  lMh(k
Laatsch

Title: ceo

Greater Seacoast Community Health

RFP-2021-BbAS.08-FAMIL-blrA01
A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to: form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF. THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/2/2022

Date

. j^tfitwyLo
Guarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor arid Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Greater Seacoast Cprnmunily Health A-S-1.2

RFP-2021-BDAS-08-FAMIL-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
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ExMfail C.3 Amendment «1 Budget

Ngw Hampshir* Dapaitment of Hoalth and Human Services

BtddertPregrera Name: Cremr Oeacoeei Conummlty Heaitti.

Budget Reqtiest for RFP-attl-BDASOPAMtt. • Fvn^ Support Croup Coordinator Servleea
prmtfivq-''

Budget f^eiiod; rnm ■ enom

•"•TK .- r--. - -Total Program Cost .- -.s -  • , . ̂^-'VCorrt/BCSorSharefMaan ;  '■ riC-Bd-'"" ;  • .'r'-." - • ^.funded, by. DHHS.contraet share .
Line Item <- • ■  r :-i Dlreei — - - '  - .trrdlrecf - — — --Total -■Diner-'' f - indirect.- ' • - -Total • - . •  Direct i- T - • •;lndlreet f ,*■> ■ -Total-—- -6
i: Total Satwrv/aoes" . S ■ 3&CIOO.OO S 3928.00 6  38.328.00 - S  33980.00 s .3928.00 $ 36.608.00
2. Cmploree Benefta $  TXIOO-OO $ .70090 S  7.70a00 S  6.666.00 s 6 6.656.00
3. ' Consubsnts .$. t.OOQ.00 5 ' S  1.000.00 S  1900.00 s 6 1.00090
4. Eouipmeftc s S s s 6 5 .

Rental s S  60000 s 60.00 6 660.00
Repair and Malrtenance S  -2SOdO 6 2690 S  276.00 S  250.00 6 25.00 6 27590
Fvehaia/Depreeiaiien s 6 . $ S .  • 9 .

S: Supples: s S . s s $ . 5
EdueaOonai S  600.00 6 60.00 6  eaaoo S  60000 s eaoo S fjfnm

Lab $ 6 . s $ t . s
Ptormacv % 6 . s $ i . s
MatScsl s S - y . 6 .

once S  1.C00JX) S 10090 5  1.10090 s  1.000.00 s 100.00 6 i.ioaoo
S Tratwl • S  . .3.450.00 6 34590 $  3.795.00 S  3.450.00 i 345.00 6 3.795.00
7. Occupancy S  1.800.00 6 180.00 $  1.980.00 S  1.600.00 s 18090 6 1.98a00
8. Current 0coet«es s S - s $ s . S

Telephone S  600.00 $ 9090 $  99090 6  . 900.00 s oaoo S 99090
Postaoe s S S 5 s 6
Subscnotiors- $ ' - 6 6 s  . . $ S

.  AudkanoLaosi s 6 $ • s s s
Inswanca s  . S 6 $ 5. s
Board Expenses s s s s S 5

9. . Softirars." s t $ S . S
to. Uerietiv^Conmuniesaorts . S  040.91 6 84.09 S  92690 . 5  806.00 S 60.00 s 88600
IT. Staff EducaOon andTrsiTBtQ S  '4.170.00 6 41790 S' 4.58790 S  7900.00 S 7X.OO 5 6.03600
12. Subcontraea/Aoreemstas S  13.000.00 6 . S  '13.00090 S  11.700.00 i •  . 6 11.700.00
13. OaieriMseik>oE>9ensssfc i  60090 $ . CO.OO S  600.00 s  eoaoo s 6090 i 66600.

$ 6 - 5 5 .  ■ S s - s .

s $ 5. S s t  • - s s
s 6" . S s 6 $ s . 5 .

.-.ifc'. j.«»TOTAL»-v,'x -r ., t. .-w- $4.— 69.61091 5.389.09 .-•« 75.000.00 i .■ • — <• • • .. .. i. . , 1.4/. ..V 1. - • .•■69,»42.00 . - . , 596890 -.i-r ./4.,.;76000.00

Giesar SeacoKl Comnjnity HoaSf)
RFP.2021-eClAS-08-FAMlmM-A01

0-3 AmenOrm tl
Page i of i

vonnccor ucjasnr
.Data.

5/2/M2J



LorlA.ShlbiQette
ConninlOAer

Kaija S. Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PL^SANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603.27I-9544 1-800^-3345 ExL 9544

F«x: 603-271-4332 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhj.nh.gov

January 6, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and, the Honorable Council

State House
Concoid,, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter Into a contract: With Greater Seacoast Community Health (VC .#166629^B001)
Somersworth. New Hampshire In the amount of $150.000 for Family Support Coordinator seiylces
statewide wKH the optiori to renew for up to four (4). additional years, effective upon Governor
and Council approval through June 30, 2022. 100% Other Funds. (Governor's Commission on
Alcohol and Other Drugs).

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be^avaiiable in State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability" and continued
approprtatlon of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items,
within the price'iimltalioh and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-92-92051 b-3382b000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISiON FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR POMMISSION FUNDS

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058501 $75,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 9205850.1 $75,000

Total $160,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide Family Support Coordinator services for family
and community support groups In order to sustain and expand support services for families of
individuals with Substance IJw Disorders (SUD) and/or co-occyrring mental health disorders
(COD). The Confractorwill:

•  Increase ;access to family support groups;

•  Recruit, enroll, and provide supervision and support to family s.upport group facilitators;
; and

areas where new or additional family

support groups,are heeded.

TTij De^rUntnt ofHwIth and Human Servioes'.Mission is to Join cMimunUin aiid famiiks
■in prouidingcpportunilies for eiliiens io achieve heallh and independence.
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Approximately 2,000 individuajs will be served from February 1.2021 to June 30.2022.
Farnlly^support groups provide critical support and education to families of individuals twith

substance use disorders in order to assist therri to grow and strengthen. The supports assist
individuals and families to effectively respond to their family merfiber and loved ones with
substance use disorders. Additionally support group facilitators can assist .famiiles with managing
other responsitjiiities, in the family member's life. A'key component of the support groups is the
peer nature of the support, which allow famliies to share their experiences and mentor others.

Peer Recovery Support Services for individuals and families have become an important
part of the Departmerit's overall strategy to respond to substance misuse issues In the State of
New Hampshire. Due to^the COVID-19 pandemic, families have faced difficulties challenges in
accessing the services, infp^ation and support they need to strengthen their resiliency and ability
to help farhily merfiberS stmggling with substance misuse Issues.

The Department will monitor Contractor performance through quarterly reporting.

The Departrnent selected the Contractor through a corhpetitive bid; process using a
Request for Pro^sals (RFP) that was posted on the^Departmerrt's website from 9/14/2020
through 10/15/2020;" The Department received three (3) responses that were reviewed and scored
by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet Is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Sedon 1 Revisions
to Form P-37, General Provisions, Subsection 1.1 of the attached contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council
approval!

Should the .Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will be a lack
of coordination of support services for families of iridividuals with substance use disorders.

Area served; Statewide.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this'program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Heahh and Human Services
OfTice of Business Operations
Contracts & Procijrerherit Unit

Scoring Sheet

Family Support Group Coordinator
Services
RFP Name

RFP-2021-BDAS-08-FAMIL

RFP Number

Bidder Narhe
Points ' Points

Granite Pathways 340 224

'2 - - - '' Greater Seacoast Community Health 340 286

Greater Tilton Area Resource Center 340 246
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subjcct:_Family Support Cobrdinator Services (RFP-:2021-BDAS-08-FAMIL-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Go.vcnior and
Executive Council for approval. Atty information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to thc agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

t.I Stotc.AgencyName

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-385,7

1.3 Contractor Name

Greater Seacoast Community Health

1.4 Contractor Address

311 Route 108
Somersworth, NH, 03878

1.5 Contractor,Phone

Number

(603)'5.16-2550

1.6 Account Number

0'5'-09'5-092-920510-
;33820000-102^500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$150,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
/>r--0ocu3lgn«d by:

l i. Ll Ll Date: 1/4/2021
Javot ImUk

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Janet Laatsch

CEO

1.13 St'^lc'X^lncy&ignaturc

Datc:l/^/202l'
1.14 .Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory
Katja Fox

Director

1.15 N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable) ^

By: Director, On:

■ 1.1.6 Approval by the Attorney Gcncml (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
1/5/2021

By: 0":

1.17' Approv^'^'^Hctjowrnor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C ltem number: • G&C Meeting Date:

.-Page 1 of 4
.Cbnlractor Initials

Dalt^-T'T^OZr
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2. SERVICES TO 6E PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampsliirc, acting ihrough the agency identified in block 1.1
("Stale"), engages -contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and:more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
coritrary, and subject to the approval of the Govenior and
Executive Council of the Statc.ofNcw Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement,and alf obligation.*; of the parties hereundcf, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this A^ccrhcnt as indicated in block 1.17,

unless no such opprpyal is required, in which case the Agreement
.shall -become cfTcctive on the date, the Agreement is signed by
the State,Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("ElTcctive Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor eommcnccs the Seiyiccs prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor; and in.thc event that this Agrcenient does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without lirhitation, any obligation to .pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services pcrfoimcd.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block,1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcrciindcr, including,
without limitation, the continuance.of payments hereundcr, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
fimds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action' tltol reduces, cliininatcs or otherwise modifies' the

appropriation or availability of funding'for this Agreement and
the Scope for Scrvices providcd in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereundcr in excess of such available appropriated fiinds. In ihc
event of a reduction 6f_ termination' of appropriated funds, the
State shall have thc,right to withhold payrncnt until siich funds
become available, if cvcr,-and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate Ihc Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tcnnination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
.account or source to.the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
cvcht.funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is ihcbrporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall 'be the only and .the complete

corhpcnsation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than'the contract price.
5.3 The: State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable lb the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or pcrniitted by N.H, RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary,, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
Kcrcunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ ECjUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the

Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
rcgulalions, and orders of'fcdcral, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor,.including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in aiiy part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal .executive orders, riilcs, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicablc intellectual
propcrty'laws.
6.2 During the'term of this Agreement, the Coritfactor shall .not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of racc. color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
ofieiUalion, or,national origin.and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to pcmiit the State or United States
access to any of the Cbntractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of asccrlnining compliance with all mlcs, regulations
and orders, and the covenants; terms' and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7..1 The Contractor shall at its o.wn cxpcnsc provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Sciwiccs. The Contractor wafrants thal
all.personnel engaged in the Sciyiccs ;shall be qualified to
perform thc^ Services, and shall, be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless.otherwise authorized in writing, during thc.tcrm of
this Agreement, and for a period of six .'(6) months after the
Completion Date in.block I.-7, the Contractor shall.nol'lurc,'and
shall not permit any siibcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged :in a combined cfToft to
perform ihc Scr\'iecs to'hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who i.s inatcfially involved in the procurement,
administrotioii or perfonuance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termiriatipn of this Agreement.;
7.3 The.Coniraeting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative, in the event of any
dispute concerning, the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of4
Contractor Initial:

rrDS

X
Datcv472021
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcundcr ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure' to perform the Services satisfactorily .or on
schedule;

8; 1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement. . ,
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, of all, of the following actions;
8.2.! give the Contractor a \\Titlen notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of ihc tiqlice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agrccrncht,.effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
'8^2:2 give the Contractor aAvriltcn notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date ofsudi notice until such time as the State
determines that.the Coiitracior has.cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defauli.and'sct 6iT against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; bnd/or
8.2.4 give the Contractoro written nbiicc spccifying the Event of
Default, treat fiic Agfecmeiu as breached, terminate the
Agreetnent and pursue any of its rciTKdies at law or in equity, or
both.

8;3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Eveiit of Default shall bc.dccmed h \vaivcr of its-rights with
regard to thai Event oflDefault,' or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to.cnforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a'waiver of the right .of the State to enforce each and
alj of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may; at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any.reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days wtiltcn notice, to the Contractor that
the State is .exercising its option to terminate the Agrccnicnl:
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this AgrccrhcniTor
any reason 'Other than the" cpmpletioh of the Scn'ices, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion; deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Scr\'i.ccs performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The.forin, subject matter,
content, and number of qopics of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, ot the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early, termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, fomiulac, surveys, rhaps, charts, sound recordings, video,
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings,-analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.,
10.2 All data and any property which has.been received from
thc.Slate or pui^chased tvnth.fuiids provided for that purpose
mhdcr this Agreement, shall be the property ofthc State, and -
shall be returned to the.State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall bc governed by N;H . RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing low. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

1,1. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE: In the
pcrforrhancc of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agcni nor an
employee of the State. ' Neither the Conlractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall havc authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other cmoUimcnis provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or othcwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, \yhich
shall be provided to the .State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of tlic State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall consiitutc
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consoiidation. of a transaction or'scries of related transactions in
which a Ihird party, together wilh its oftlliatcs, becomes the
direct or indirect o\Micr of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of thc'Conlractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the •Scr\'iccs shall be subcontracted by the
Contrnctor 'Without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The Slate is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agrcenicnts.and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcoriu-act or an assignment agreement to which it is not a

- party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
ofticcrs and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities ohd costs for any personal injury or prope.iiy damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers,or employees, which arise out .of (or which
may be ciaimcd to arise out oft the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The Stale shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising uiider
this paragraph,! 3. Notwithstandiiig the foregoiiig, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a.\vniycr of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity' is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph |3 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain -in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain ond maintain in force, the
following Insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insuronce against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in arnpunts of not
less than $1,000,000 per .occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of joss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagroph I0.2,hcrcini in an amount hot less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Stale
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurere licensed in the Stale of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall funiisii to lite Conihiciing Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor; a ccrtificatefs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also.furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificatc(s) of insurance
for all rcncwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance." policy. The certlficatc(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATlOiN.

15.1 By signing this agfccnicrit, the Controciof agrees, certifies
and warrants.lhat the Contractor is in compliance with or c.xcmpt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("lydrkers'
Compensation").
15.2 To. the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, .Contractor shail maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assjgnee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Coriipcnsation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake piirsuant to this
Agreement, The Contractor shall furriish the Contracting Officer
identified in block,1.9, or his bfhcr.siicccssor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H, RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, which .shall be
attached and arc. incoiporatcd herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
.Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise iinder applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers'" Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other,party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a Unilcd Statcs
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in wiling signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale ofNcw Hampshire, unless no such approval is,required
under the circum.slance.s pursunnt to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OK LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shalj

be govcmcdi interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hamp.shir"c, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the" parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agrccmcnt.is the wording
chosen by the parlies to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agrccnient shall be brought and"
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a cgnflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms .of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control

20.. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement .shall not be
constnicd to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement pire
for reference purposes only, and tlic words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference,

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthc provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary lo any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in fulj force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, w;hich may be
executed in, a number of counterparts; each of which .shall be
deemed an original, consiituics the entire agreement niid
understanding between the parties, and supersedes -all prior
agreements and understandings Nvith respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator Services

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, 'Effective Date/Completion of Services, Is amended by.adding
subparagfaph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to 4 additional years from
the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreementof the parties, and approval of the Governor
and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding,
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3., Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to-ensure-subcontractor,
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor' shall have writteri
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and'how corrective action shall be.-managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall , manage the.,
subcontractor's perforniance on an ongoing basis and take .corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

RFP-2021-BDAS-08-FAM1L-01 Exhibil A - Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions Contractor initials I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support CoordiriMor Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of'Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide statewide Family Support Coordinator Services
that support a network of .existing and new family and community support group
facilitators who serve families of Individuals with Substance Use Disorders (SUD
and/or Co-Occurring mental health Disorders (COD).

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure support group activities provide opportunities for
famiiies to:

1.2.1. Share personal experiences and gain coping strategies: and

1.2.2. Share information about resources and treatments to effectively respond
to their loved one who has a substance use disorder.

1.3. The Contractor shall engage all NH Doorways providers and 2-1-1 NH on a
quarterly .basis in order to:

1.3.1. Build referral bases.

1.3.2. Identify needs.

1.3.3. Conduct gap and barrier analysis on an ongoing basis.

1.4. The Contractor shall conduct quarterly stakeholder meetings, either digitally or
in person,' in-order to facilitate engagement activities relative to Family Support'
Coordinator Services, ensuring stakeholders include, but are opt limited to:

1.4.1. NH Doorways providers,

1.4.2. 2-1-1 NH. .

1.4.3. Public health networks. _

1.4.4. Integrated delivery networks.

1.4.5. Recovery cortimunity organizations.

1.4.6. Mental health clubhouses.

1.4.7. Farnily resource centers.

1.4,8. . Treatment providers.

1.5. The Contractor shall serve as a subject matter expert on peer-to-peer support
for families with S,Ub//COD struggles in a variety of ways, including, but to
limited to, serving on work groups; advisory councils; and comrnittees relating
toSUD/COD.

.1.6; The Contract shall facilitate quarterly focus groups, either digitally or in person,
in collabofatioh \vith family group facilitators in order to gather data relating ito
the needs of individuals served in order to-identify successes, challenges, gaps
barriers and specific needs.

RFP^2021-BDAS-08-FAMIL-01 Cohlraclor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family SupportCoordinator Services

EXHIBIT B

1.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with recovery community centers, statewide,
and the facilitating organization to:

1.7.1. Identify the needs of family support group, meetings;

1.7.2. Identify qualified candidates to be trained in facilitating family support
meetings;

1.7.3; Create a marketing plan to disseminate information on family support
networks;

1.7.4. Develop a new family facilitator training to attract individuals to be trained
In facilitating family support groups.

1.7.5. Recruit.and train facilitators through the use; of:

1.7.5.1. Flyers.

1.7.5.2.' Networking.

1.7.5.3. ' Marketing materials; and

1.7.5.4. Dedicated page on the Contractor's website that offers information
on how to become a family support group facilitator.

1.8. the Contractor shall expand utilization of digital platforms in order to increase
,, engagement, attendance and participation in:

1.8.1. Meetings;

1.8.2. Trainings; and

1.8.3. Focus groups.

1.9. The Contractor shall work to increase attendance at support group meetings to;

1.9.1. Over 200 individuals weekly for online and in-person support groups
withinThe first year of contracted services;

1.9.2. , A minimum oflO new family recovery support facilitators who are recruited
and trained into the NH network of family support group facilitators prior
to July 1,2021.

1.9.3. A minimum of 15 trained new family recovery.support facilitators, annually,
after July '1, 2021.

1.10. The Contractor shall establish an information sharing plan to ensure support
groups have equitable access to information and resources. The Contractor
shall:

1.10.1, Create and disseminate comprehensive material that' can be
disseminated to facilitators, statewide, that support their efforts.

1.10.2. Compile subject matter information to produce.quarterly newsletters for all
trained facilitators.

•OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family Support Coordinator Services

EXHIBIT 8

1.10.'3. Invite all.facilitators to. quarterly meetings in order to engage in:

1.10.3.1. Continuing education discussions and opportunities;

1.10.3.2. Networking opportunities;

1.10.3.3. Discussions regarding feedback on successes and challenges;
and

1.10.3.4. Discussions regarding barriers to successfully engage family
support groups.

1.10.4. Engage each facilitator in one-on-one monthly meetings- in order to
identify facilitator needs and provide information or resources that are
available in order.to meet the identified needs.

1.10.5. Utilize consultant services to inform training curriculurri developrrient to
ensure sensitivity to diverse cultures who may or may not have
engagemeht.with family support services.

1.11. The Contractor shall ensure all Family Support Group Facilitators:have theskiljs
and knowledge necessary for group facilitation and a solid understanding of the
challenges that families served are facing. The Contractor shall: .

1.11:1. Ensure training, either on-line or face-to-face, includes elements relative
to SUD/COD as well as:

.1.11.1.1. Training curriculum approved by the Department;

1.11.1.2. Suicide Prevention education; and

1.11.1.3. Boundaries training.

1.11.2. Collaborate with multiple nationallyTecognized subject rtiattef experts and
experts in family recovery supports within-and outside of NH to develop
curriculum to be utilized for facilitator trainings. The Contractor shall:

1.11.2.1. Include a minimurri of two (2) dually-licensed clinical mental health
experts who will give feedback on curriculum/content to ensure
trauma-informed care approaches are, sensitive to individuals with
trauma and co-occurring issues.

1.11.2.2. Ensure curriculum utilizes evidence-based.and evidence-informed
strategies for peer-based facilitation of support groups for
individuals vyith SUD/COD.

1.11.2.3. Develop and submit the facilitator training curriculum to the
Department for approval no later than 90 days from the.contract
effective-date, which focuses on:

1.1'1..2.3.1. How to facilitate mutual aid meetings for family
members;

RFP-2021-BDAS-08tFAMIL-01 Contraclbr Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Farhily Support Coordinator Services^

EXHIBIT B

1.11.2.3.2. Row, to create a safe space for all Individuals
involved in meetings:

1.11.2.3.3. Basics on SLID, COD, trauma-informed care
and strategies and • techriiques for best
practices in active listening and body language;

1.11.2.3.4. Appropriate boundaries for facilitators;

1.11.2.3.5. Basic motivational Interviewing skills in a group
facilitator role; and

1.11.2.3.6. How to offer empathy and validations to
individuals involved in meetings who may be in
crisis.

1;.11.3.. Offer-Strainings at multiple venues, including but not limited to offering
trainings through digital formats to ensure statewide availability of training
curriculum. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.11.3.1. No cost-to training participants for Family Support Group
Facilitator required trainings, which is "offered a minimum of 6
times per year as both:

.  1.11;3.1.1. A one-day six-hour facilitator training; and

1.11 .'3.1.2. Two three-hour sessions for individuals who
cannot attend a full one-day six-hour training.

1.11.3.2. Low. cost for training participants who engage in additional
trainings that are not required, but recommended.

1.11.3.3. Twenty-five (25) scholarships are available for trainings that are
not required.

1.11.3.4. Twenty-five (25) scholarships are,available for suicide prevention
draining that is offered a minimum of 4 times per year,, which is
approved by:

1.11.3.4.1. The, NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol and
Other prugs for contact hours; and

1.11.3.4.2. NAADAC as an educational provider.

1.11.4. Provide 1-2 hour digital workshops.every quarter on:

1.11.4.1. Selfrcafe issues;

1.1t.4.2. Boundaries;

1.11.4.3. Diversity;

1 !l 1;4.4, .Equity and Inclusipn; and

1.11.4.5. Compassipn fatigue.

RFP-2021 -BDAS-OS-FAMlL-OI Contractor Initials
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'New.Ha^mpshire. pepartment of Health and Human Services
Famiiy'Support Coordinator Services

EXHIBIT B

1.12. The Contractor shall ensure families rnost in need of family support group
services"are aware of services in their communities arid/or-.seivice areas while

. ensuring Tamily privacy is respected including during group meetings. The
Contractor shail:

1.12.1. Create and disseminate comprehensive digital and internet-based
marketing material that can be distributed in recovery community centers
and clinical treatrrient and mental health providers, statewide, through:

1.12; 1.1. Webpages;

1.12.1.2. Flyers; and

1.12.1.3. Posters,

1.12.2. "Distribute a.'quarterly newsletter" that provides information >arid resources
tofacilitators.

1.12.3. Utilize networks to disseminate information and jhfpfmatipn. sessions with
the networks to ensure saturalion of information within the communities.

1.12.3.1. Provide one-on-one peer support to family members through
RecoveryLink, which:

1.12.3.2. Includes recovery planning for family members with existing family
recovery support coordinators. .

1.12.3.3. Is available without any financial cost to ensure facilitators can
provide' additional support to attendees at all family support
meetings.

1.13. The Contractor shall ensure maximum participation of group members attending
family support group rheetings by:

1.13.1. Encouraging self-directed.- participation in order to encompass
participation by parents who may be traumatized; have social anxiety; of
feel uncomfortable in groups.

1.13.2. Offering a variety of formats for meetings, based on local needs.

1.13.3. Encouraging participation in groups of less than 12 individuals by offering
■each member to do an introduction that includes the fea'spn for
attendarice.

1.13.4. Ensuring standard-SO-minute meeting formats that are predictable and
include parts that are not limited to:

1.13.4.1. Time ■ for introductions -of facilitato'rs arid participants, if
appropriate.

1.13.4.2. Time for equitable sharing among participants.

1.13..4^3. Ability to ensure anonymity of participants.

RFPt2021-BDAS-0^FAMIL-01 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshir.e Department of Health and Human Services
Farhily SujDport^Ccordinator Services

EXHIBIT B

l!l3.4.4. Time to share tools and resources that may be available to assist
participants.

1.13.4.5. Closing statements that include time for individuals in .crisis, and
Individuals who'do not wish to broadly share experiences, to have
on.e-on-pne cphversatipns with the facilitator.

2, Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance -with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health

-  Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insdrarice Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 19.96, arid in accordaiice ̂
with the attached Exhibit, I, Business Associate Agreement, which has-been
executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all cohfidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance .with the terms - of -Exhibit. K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements. '

,2.3,. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits P through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by ̂reference ,herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly Farhily Support Group Data Reports that
•  include, buf are hot limited to:

3.1.1. De-identified information relative to support group meetings, that include,
but are not limited to:

"  "3.1.1.1. Date and location of farnily support group meetings. Including, but
no limited to:

3.1.1.1.1. Number of support groups monitored through
this contract.

3.1.1.1.2. Number" of family menibers participating .in
support groups monitored through this
contract.

3.1.1.2. Number of people present and relationship to Individual with an
SLID for each support group facilitated.

3.t.i.3. Number of he.w participants.

3.1.1.4. Summary of comments made regarding treatment, recovery,
incarceration, and/qr relapse.

3.1.2. Family'Support Group Facilitator inforrnation that, includes, but is inot
limited to:

3.1.2.1. A list of active facilitators and the group(s) facilitated, ^ds

RFP-2021-BDAS-68-FAMIL-01 Cpnlractor Inlllal^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Family. Support Coordinator Services

EXHIBIT B

3.1.2.2. Action plan for recruiting additional facilitators for any group with
less than two (2) facilitators.

3:1.3. Training Information including, but not limited to dates, locations,, and
names pf. required trainings attended by each facilitator, and:

3.1.3.1. Number of , new Family Facilitators completing the. Family
Leadership Training Program.

3.1.3.2. Dates and locations of suicide prevention and other trainings.

3.1.3.3. -Number of individuals completing trainings.

3.1.3.4. Primary town of residence of individuals completing trainings.

3.1.4. Training scholarship information including, but not limited to:

3.1.4.1. Date, location, and title of training.

3.1.4.2. Name of scholarship recipient.

3.1.4.3. Amount of scholarship.

3.1.4.4. Running tally of the number of scholarships provided for trainings.

3.1.5. Marketing Community Engagement Development efforts, which includes
but is not limited tp:

3.1.5.1. "Outreach and marketing efforts.

3.1.5.2. Activities to assess the need for additional support groups.

• 3.1.5,3. Activities to increase support groups in identified areas, iricluding
but not limited to recruitment efforts for new group facintatbrs.

. 3.1.5.4. A narrative detailing outreach and marketing efforts.

3.1.5.5. A narrative detailing engagement with work groups, advisory
councils, and committees relating tp SUD.

3.1.5.6. A narrative detailing activity to assess the need for additional
support groups.

3.-1.5.7. Any comments regarding treatment, recovery, incarceration,
and/pr relapse.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The -Department will monitor Contractor performance by establishing a baseline
measure,of the number of family support groups available in the state during the
first.year of the contract.

4.2. The Contractor shall achieve an increase of 10% over the baseline measure in
Subsection 4.1 during the second year, as tracked and measured through
quarterly reporting.

4.3. The Contractor shall establishing a baseline measure of the number of fan)ilyD«
RFP-2021-BDAS-08-FAMIL-01 Contraclor Initials 4,
Greater Seacoast Community Health Page 7 of 10 Date i/A/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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EXHIBIT B

members participating in family support group during the first year of the
■contract.

4.4. The Contractor shall achieve an Increase of 10% over the baseline measure, in
Subsection 4.3 during the second year, as tracked and measured through
quarterly reporting

4.5. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery,
and policy based on successful outcomes. ' .

4.6. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and hfi.etrics to the
Department, including dientrlevel demographic, performance, and service data.

4.7. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

'  5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative.Changes

. 5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future :state or,federal legislation
or court orders rhay have an impact on the Services described herein, the'
State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure

.  requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

5;2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate
Programs and Services

5.2.1. The Contractor .shall submit, within ten (10) days of the "contract effective
date, a detailed description of the communication access and language
assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access to
programs and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency;
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership
•  5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other

materials prepared during" or resulting from the perforrnance of the
.services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
prepajation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Cohtract
vyith 'tlie State, of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services, vyith furids provided in part by' the State of New Hampshire
and/or.such-other funding sources as .were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of Health and Human Services."

5.3.2. AH rriaterials ■produced or purchased under the contract .shall have prior
approval from the Departrrieht before printing, production, distribution or
use.

RFP-2021-BDAS-08-FAMILr01 Contractor Injlials

Greater Seacoasl Comrnunily Health Page'8of10
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5-.3.3. The Department shall retaih copyright ownership for .any and all original
materials produced, including, but not.limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures. ' •

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5; Reports.

5.3.4: The Contractor shall riot reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without-prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and.^
municipal authorities and with any .direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor
:with respect.to the operation of the facility or the proyisioh of the services
at such .facility. If any governmental license or permit shall ;be required for
the operation of the said facility Or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times'
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit: In
connection with the foregoing requirernents, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities
shall .corfipiy with ail rules, orders, .regulations, and requirements of the
State' Office of the f^ire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
shall be in'conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws arid
■regulations.

6. Records

6.1." The Contractor shall'keep records that include, but are not limited to:
6.1.1. 'Books, records, documents' and other electronic or physical data

evidencing and reflecting ail costs and other expenses incurred by the
■Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices; Which sufficiently and' properly ;reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are, acceptable, to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence, of
costs such as. purchase requisitions and ord.ers, vouchers, fequisitibhs for
■riiaterials, inventories, valuations of in-kind cbritfibutipns. labor tirhe cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

RFP-2021-BDAS-08-FAMlLr01 Contractor Initials
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6.1.3. Statistical, enrollmeht, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all recor;ds of application and
eligibility'(including all forrris required to determine eligibility for each such
recipient), records regarding the provision of services and alljnvoices
submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract.fpr purposes of audit, examination,.

■ excerpts ahd'transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the m.aximurn
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon" payment of the-price
lirnitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the erid of the terrti of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the

Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final
Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the
Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such surhs from the Contractor.

.RFP.202i-BPAS-08-FAMIL-01 . , Contractor'IniUais
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Pavment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Other funds (Goverhor's Commission on
Alcohol and Other .Drugs).

2. Payrhent shall be; on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
Incurred in the fulfillment of- this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line.item, as specified In Exhibits 0-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
2, Budget.

3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which' identifies and
requests relmburseiment for authorized expenses incurred In the prior month.

• The Contractor shall ensure the invoice Is completed, dated and returned to the
Departrtient in order to iriitiate, payment.

4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesbdas@dhhs.nh.gov, or Invoices may be mailed to:

Financial lyianager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant.Street

. Concord. NH 03301

.5. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice, sutisequent to approval of the submitted invoice and
If sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreenieht.

6. 'The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified inform P-37, General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7. The Contractor :must provide the services in Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or In part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

9. . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
■  funding under this.agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event

of non^ompliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have,,not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditioris of this
agreement.

10. .Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited, to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years-and budget class lines througli the

RFP-2021-BDAS-08rFAMIL-01 Page 1 of 2 Date,
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B,udget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor arid Executive Council, if needed, and
justified.

11." Audits

11.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if ahy of the following conditions exist:

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
■federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject-to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
.organizations receiving support of $.1,000,000" or rriore.

11.1.3. -Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Conirnissioh (SEC) regulations.to
submit an, annual financial audit.

11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annualsingle audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted Tn accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirernent's, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

^  . • >

11.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor,shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

, 11.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or'greater than
$250,0.00 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a.rnj.nimum, to subniit annual
financial audits "performed by an independent CPA if the Department's,
risk as.sessrhent determinatipn indicates the Contractor Js high-risk.

11;5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by'the Contractor that, the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and -shall return, to the Department all payments rhade under the
"Gpntract.'to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Greater Seacoasl C<^munfty Health. Exhibit C Contractor Initials.
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Standard .Exhibits DrH

The parties agree that the Department's Standard Exhibits D,through Exhibit fi arc not,applicable to this
Agreement.."

Remainder of page intentionally leR blank.
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Heaith Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health'Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 a'nd.164 applicabie to business associates. As defined herein, "Business •
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreernent and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health.and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have .the same meaning as the term' "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of jitle 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term iri section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of 'Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164,501.

e. "Data Aoareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFf^
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as thelerm "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means" the Health Information Technology for Economic and Cliniiqai Health
Act, TitieXlii, Subtitle D, Parti & 2 of the American Recovery'and Reinvestment Act of
20,09.

h. "HiPAA" means the'Health insurance Portability and Accountabilit/Act of 1996, Pubijc Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually'identifiable Health
Information, 45 CiFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "IndividuaT shall have the same meaning as-the term "Individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person" who qualifies .as a personal representative in accordance with 4,5
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall.mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable. Health
information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HiPAA by the United States
Departmerit of Health, and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

•  Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ' "
3/2014 Exhibit I ' Contractor Initial
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I, "Required bv Law" shall have the sarne meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not

secured by'a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized-individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other befihitlons - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
•established under-45 G.F.R. Parts 160; 162 and 164,.as amended from time to t[me, and the
HITECH .

-  Act

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Inforrhation.

a. 'Business.Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmlt.Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. b.elow; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health.care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any "breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has" obtained
knowledg'e of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services'under Exhibit A of the.Agreement, disclose any PHI In response.to a
iequest.for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Co'vered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busi^§§

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initial^
Heallh.lnsuranco Porlabllily Act
.Business Associate Agreement 1/4/2021
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Associate.shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
•be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the,Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shalj hot disclose PHI in viojation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an'impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

,  0 The nature and extent of the protected health inforfnalioh inyojved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

•o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 the extent to which the risk to the protected heaith informatlori has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notificatioh-Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Busihess Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered.Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule".'

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use pr have.
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to.adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty.tOTeturn or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
phail be copsidered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business asspciates, who will be receivino-Piyi

3/20.14. Exhibit I Contractor Initials I
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract pfpvisipns (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request frorh Covered Entity, .
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
Of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. ' Within teh (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered'Entity,
Busihess Associate shall proyide access to PHI in a Designated fRecord Set to the
Covered Entity, oras directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Erility for an
■ amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
arnendrne'nt and incorporate ariy such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and.information related to
such disclpsufesas would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
'164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to futfill its obligations
to provide an^accountlng of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 1^.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendrrient of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate; the. Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall-have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA'and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to.the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of. such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall.return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retaln any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return of
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall contlnue'to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Businessj^"
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Associate rnaintains such 'PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business.Associate destroy any of aii PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or lim,itatioh(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section'
164.520, to the ejrteni that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use of disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Ehtity-shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or fevocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individual's whose PHl may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Caiise
#

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37)of this
Agreement the, Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement setforth'herein as Exhibit J.'The.Covered Entity may either Immediately
terrninate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a tlmeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither terfnination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the sarine meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to, time. A reference in'the Agreement, as amended to include thisBxhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and' Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend'the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for-Covered
Entity to compjy with the changes in the requirements of HiPAA, the Privacy and -

■ Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has. no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI-provided by or created on behalf of CoVered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agreeThat any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.j^"

3/2014" Exhibit! Conlractor InillaL
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement .1/4/2021

Page 5 of 6 Date



OocuSign Envelop© ID: D0852532-6F80-4B47-941E.ECA752E4CEF6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit i or the application thereof to any
per$oh(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and.conditions of this Exhibit i are declared sevefable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit i regarding the use ahd disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) j, the,
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Greater seacoast Community Health
Department of Health and Human Services

The State
f  OecuSlgn*4 by;'

Name of the Contractor
y-^OocuSlon«l by:

.Wof lAah(L
Authorized Representative ^9fefRai0*€R3f°Authori2ed Representative

Katja FOX 3anet Laatsch

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Director CEO

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

1/4/2021 1/4/2021

Date. Date

>^—08
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CERTIFICATiON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY-AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFAtA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on
data related to executive'cbmpensation and associated fir:st-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or rripre. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
S25.000, th'e ayrard is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award,
in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Siibaward and Executive.Compensation'tnformation), the
Department of Health" and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirerrients;
1. Name of entity
2. .Amount of award
3.. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique ideritifidr of the entity (DUNS #)
,10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More.than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than'$25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act,'Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,"
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below nartied Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of ̂ e Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

TDoeuSlgnM]^

1/4/2021 l/wfscL

Title: CEO

' Exhibits ~'Certiflcalion Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials.
Accountability And.Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 1/4/2021
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true, and accurate.

780054164
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding cornpleted fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or.cooperative agreements; a^nd (2) $25,000,000 or more'ln annual
gross revenues from U,S! fedefal.contracts. subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

. X
NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization,through periodic reports.filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a)..78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986? ,

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If-the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Narne:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

CIM)HKS/1107I3

Exhibit J - CertlHcatjon Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparoncy Act (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS Infofmatlon Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The foiiowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the ioss of controi, compromise, unauthorized' disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any. simliar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for ah other than
authorized purpose have access or potentiai access to personaily Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
infprrhatlqn," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term ̂ Breach" in section
1 M.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident •
Handling Guide, National institute of Standards and Technology, .U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as ail rnedicai, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable information.

Conflderitial.inforniation also includes any and ail information owned or.managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Seiyices (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performiiig. contracted
services - of which coiiectipn, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
staje or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Prolecled Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (Pi), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information .(FTI), Social Security Numbers' (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI),vand or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "Ehd User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) .that receives
DHHS data or .derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.of 1996 and the
regulations'promulgated thereunder.

6.- "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes .attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its. data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage, of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software,characteristics without the owner's knowledge,, instructioh, ,or
consent, incidents Include theJoss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

'or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

u'V5. Last update .10/09/.18 ExhibilK Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements. ' 1/4/2021
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.mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk Of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the-State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network- (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
;network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI,' PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19,. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when,combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards.for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.'R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and amendrnents
ihereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" rrieans Protected Health lnformation that is

not secured by a-techriology standard . that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed pr endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the Arherican. National Standards-Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its director, officers, employees and agents, rhust hot
use, disclose, malhtairi or-transmit'PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation,
of the^Privacy and Security Rule.

2, The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a
-OS

X
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by. law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS .so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent of object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the- Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additionaj, restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

:5. The Coritfactor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may'not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract. .

II. METHODS OF SECIJRE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

Applicatiori Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been ̂ evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security arid that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks, and Portable Storage Devices. ;End User may not use computer disks
or portable, storage devices, Such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
ernail Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such ihfoirnation.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket, layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known, as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hostihg seiyices, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Cpi^fidentiaJ Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via .certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Cdhfidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

or
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access: or transmit' Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) , must be .
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop, from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is .erhplbying an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the :Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate' disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sul>folders. used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for-24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data vvill be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in v/hatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

.  1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
.connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementation of
Cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
arid/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ajl electronic and hard copies of Corifidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.'2

6. The Contractor aQrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
TedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and.
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices'must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

X  .
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6; The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
•  Chief Infohmation Officer in the detection of,any security vulnerability of the hosting

infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
secureiy disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and \vill .
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by, the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency,,and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electrohic media containing State of

.  New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecpyerable via a secure, wipe prograrn
|n accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or Otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing)'as described in'NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Cornmerce.-The Contractor will document and certify in writing at.

■  time of the data destruction, and will provide .written certification to the Department'
upon request.. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
reguliatory and'professional standards for retention' requirements will.be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless, otherwise specified, within thirty (30) 'days of the termination of this
Contract,"Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such.as shreddirig.

3. Unless-otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data

. by rheans of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

ly. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows: ^

1. The "Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

"2. The Contractor .will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transfonmatlon, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

u
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, trarismit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems' and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential infortnation.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagerrient
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirerhents that at a minimum
match those, for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. ■

7. The Contractor will yvork with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures,- systerhs access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and-any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If .the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR" 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement,

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose .of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion \vith agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Cpntractdr will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Deipartment data, offshore or outside the boundaries of the Llnited States unless
prior' express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the,Department.

11. Data'Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach'Contractor shall
" make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

y—DS
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and;-security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to-federal agencies, including,
but noflimited to, prpvisioris-of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C; § 552aj, DHHS
Privacy Act; Regulations ,(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy .and Security Rules (45

• C.F.R; Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

Contractor-agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical. safeguards to protect, the confideritiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent.uriauthorized use or access to it. the safeguards must provide a level and
scop,e of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security/equirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Informkion Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential Inforrnation breach, computer
security .incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential -Data obtained under this

Contract,to only those authorized End Users who "need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must;ensure that all End Users: •

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section ,IV A. above,
implernented to protect Confidential Information that ,is furnished by DHHS
uhder this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information.at all times.

c. ensure that laptop's and other electronic deyices/media containing PHI, PI, or
. PFI are ericrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Infomiation only If encrvpted and being,
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

-OS
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e. limit disclosure of the Gonfidenlial Information to the extent permitted by law.
t

•f. Confidential information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well .as non-duty hours (e.g.. door Ipcks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data niust be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required: in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based

" assessment of the circumstances involved,

i. understand that their user credentials (user harhe and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This, applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their .End Users. DHHS
reserves the, right to conduct onsite inspections to rrionitor compliance witti this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such tirne the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSSREPORTING

The Contractor must notify .the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any.
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures fnust also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents; .

2. De'terrhine If personally identifiable information is involved in lncidents;

3.' Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to deterrnine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5: Determine whether Breach notification is required, and,. if so,, identify appropriate
Breach notification rhethods, timing, source, and contents from among .different
optiohs, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any rriltigation
measures.

■  Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed arid reported, as
applicable, in accordance yvith NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

'  A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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